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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EE®RE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of K. H. Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to our shareholders the 2017/18 Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2018.

The Group’s overall revenue increased by approximately 79.6% to
approximately HK$225,579,000 during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: approximately HK$125,589,000). The loss and total
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$25,190,000 (2017: HK$33,849,000).

Due to the decrease in the number of foundation contracts available
from both the public and private sectors, it is generally believed that
the foundation industry remains tough with keen competition among
the market players. During the difficult times, the Group tried to adjust
our tendering strategies, widen our customer base and implement
a tight cost control so as to maintain our competitiveness. In the
short term, it is expected that the foundation industry would not
regain momentum immediately.

As supported by the latest 2017 policy address of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “2017 Policy Address”) by our
Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
land and housing is still one of the most important agendas in the
2017 Policy Address. The Group believes that there will be more
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong as a result of
the boosting land supply for housing developments for both private
and public sectors as well as fostering infrastructure development
plans in the long term.

Other than the keen competition in the foundation market in Hong
Kong, the uncertainties in the execution of foundation works,
conservative approach to certification and approval for foundation
works valuation by the customers; and the continuous increase in
the direct labour and material costs undoubtedly increase the overall
operational risks of the market players.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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The Group secured a business opportunity with a large-scaled
private property developer during the year ended 31 March 2018.
It is expected that there would be significant opportunities for our
business development in the unique market segment in relation to
large-scaled private property developers in the future.

Looking ahead, the Board still remains prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group will
continue to exercise due care in pursuing its existing core business
and promoting its development plans so as to balance the risks and
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group
will also closely and carefully monitor the latest development in the
global economy and foundation industry in Hong Kong and adjust
its business strategies from time to time if required.

The Group will also try to explore and identify any suitable investment
opportunities in order to broaden our revenue base for maximisation
of return to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere appreciation to our shareholders, customers and
suppliers for their continuous support, as well as our management
team and staff for their hard work and contributions.

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWNE DN

Business Review

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of foundation services (the “Foundation”)
and the leasing of machinery (“the Leasing”) in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2017, there were 4 active projects in progress
and 4 projects yet to start. 5 of them were still in progress and
the remaining 3 were practically completed during the year ended
31 March 2018. In addition, there were another 3 active projects
which were awarded after 31 March 2017. All of them were still in
progress during the year ended 31 March 2018. As such, as at
31 March 2018, there were 8 active projects in progress. Subsequent
to 31 March 2018, there was 1 active project awarded to the Group.

Financial Review

Revenue

Our Group’s overall revenue is mainly generated by the Foundation
business segment. Due to the increase in active projects in progress,
the Group’s overall revenue increased by approximately 79.6% from
approximately HK$125,589,000 during the year ended 31 March
2017 to approximately HK$225,579,000 during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Gross Profit/Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit and gross profit margin decreased
from approximately HK$4,575,000 and approximately 3.6%
respectively during the year ended 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$2,820,000 and approximately 1.3% respectively during the year
ended 31 March 2018. The decreases in both gross profit and gross
profit margin were mainly due to:

1. unexpected additional construction costs were incurred
towards the completion stage of certain foundation projects;
and

2. the increase in the depreciation of approximately
HK$1,562,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately
19.8% from approximately HK$38,203,000 during the year ended
31 March 2017 to approximately HK$30,624,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in employee benefits expenses of approximately
HK$8,512,000.

Net Loss

As a result of the abovementioned, during the year under review, the
Group reported a net loss of approximately HK$25,190,000 (2017:
HK$33,849,000).

Debts and Charge on Assets

The total interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group,
including bank loans and finance lease payables, increased from
approximately HK$47,192,000 as at 31 March 2017 to approximately
HK$58,272,000 as at 31 March 2018. As at 31 March 2018, these
banking facilities were secured by (i) the Group’s trade and retention
receivables of approximately HK$16,992,000 (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$2,533,000); (i) the Group’s pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$10,138,000 (31 March 2017: approximately
HK$12,436,000); (i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with total net carrying amounts of approximately HK$53,312,000
(31 March 2017: approximately HK$41,851,000); and (iv) corporate
guarantee executed by the Company.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and
interests on certain borrowings were charged at floating rates. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy while
the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors interest rate risks
continuously and cautiously.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
The Group has normally funded the liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through capital contributions from the shareholders and
bank borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN®mE DN

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had pledged bank deposits,
time deposits and bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$22,728,000 (31 March 2017: approximately HK$32,027,000). The
gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2018 (defined as the
total borrowings divided by total equity) was approximately 46.6%
(81 March 2017: approximately 31.4%). As at 31 March 2018, the
current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.6 (31 March 2017:
approximately 2.2).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not employ
any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group has a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group, i.e. HKS.
As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions and assets
and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is insignificant.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider adopting hedging policy should the need arise.

Material

Significant Investments,

Disposals
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals.

Acquisitions or

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 March 2018
and up to the date of this report.

Despite the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders (as
defined in the section “Corporate Governance Report — Deed of
Non-Competition” below), Blessing Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing
Well”) has no definitive intention and plans for any acquisition or
disposal of assets and/or business of the Group as disclosed in the
joint announcement made by the Company and Blessing Well on
7 May 2018 (the “Joint Announcement”).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (31 March 2017: approximately HK$4,045,000).

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DN

Use of IPO Proceeds

The actual net proceeds from the placing and public offer (the “IPO
Proceeds”) of the shares of the Company for listing (the “Listing”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
have been utilised subsequent to the Listing in accordance with the
proposed applications set out in the section “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” of the prospectus of the Company dated 8 March 2016
save as disclosed below.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20 March 2017,
the Board has resolved to change the use of approximately HK$15.4
million out of the remaining unutilised IPO Proceeds by reallocating
the net proceeds originally intended for hiring of additional staff to
operation of prospective projects. Details of the original allocation
of the IPO Proceeds (the “Original Allocation”), the revised allocation
of the IPO Proceeds (the “Revised Allocation”), the utilisation of the
IPO Proceeds as at the date of this report (the “Utilisation”) and the
remaining balances of the IPO Proceeds as at the date of this report
(the “Remaining Balances”) are summarised below:
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Original Revised Remaining
Allocation Allocation Utilisation Balances
FERSE RBI28E CBAXRE HARBARE
HK$ million HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BE#ER BE#ER BE#ER BE#ER
Operation of prospective projects e R RIER 30.9 46.3 (46.3) -
Hiring of additional staff EEET 15.4 - - -
Purchase of machinery and equipment B8 & # 28 I 3% & 23.1 23.1 (23.1) —
General working capital —REEES 77 77 77) -
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Employees and Remuneration Policy 1B B K3 B Bk

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 119 employees (31 March
2017: 119 employees). Most of the Group’s employees are foundation
workers in Hong Kong. The remuneration policy and package of
the Group’s employees were periodically reviewed. Apart from the
Mandatory Provident Fund and in-house training programmes, salary
increments and discretionary bonuses may be awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance. The total
staff costs incurred by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2018 were approximately HK$46,844,000 (2017: approximately
HK$51,382,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Practices

To create a long term value for the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) is the Board’s main objective. As
such, the Board is highly committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and striving to maintain the management
practices in a transparent and responsible way. The Board reviews
and improves the Group’s corporate governance practices and
business ethics on an ongoing basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Company complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) except for the
deviations mentioned in the sections of “Meetings and Attendance”,
“Independent Non-executive Directors” and “Risk Management and
Internal Controls”.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All the
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of three
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.
Details of the composition of the Board and biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 41 to 48 of this annual report in the
section of “Corporate Information” and on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report in the section of “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”,
respectively.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and
experience to the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors also provide their independent professional judgments
on the assessment of the development, performance and risk
management of the Group.

Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2018, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BT2EHEE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee Annual General
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ES28E ENZECER REZECER FHZEEER RREFAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul &@ KRG K LEOER 5/5 N/ATNiE A 11 2/2 il
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris © BEBEEO 5/5 N/ATF 3 B 11 N/ATR i3 0
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen REBBEZLT 5/5 N/AZT 3 A N/AZT 3 A 2/2 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Chan Kee Huen Michael RRExE 4/5 2/2 1/1 N/A i F 01
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee @ BRELEEW 5/5 2/2 11 2/2 11
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank © REBEEO 5/5 2/2 N/AT 3 A 2/2 on
Professor Chung Hung Kwan Barnabas BBRHHUE 4/5 2/2 /1 2/2 11
1. Chairman of the Board. 1, EEGERF -
2. Chairman of the Nomination Committee. 2. REZBEXRE -
3. Deputy managing Director of the Board. 3. ERQRESHKRE -
4, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. 4. FTMEEGERE -
5. Chairman of the Audit Committee. 5. BEREEGERE -
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In respect of code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
without the presence of the executive Directors.

As Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul, the chairman of the Board, is also an
executive Director, the Company has deviated from this code
provision as it is not practicable. The independent non-executive
Directors could communicate with the chairman of the Board directly
at any time through other means (such as telephone or email) to
give their opinions and share their views on the Company’s affairs.
It is therefore considered that there are ample opportunities for the
chairman of the Board to communicate with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of the executive Directors.

In respect of code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent
non-executive Directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders. Due
to the typhoon and bad weather condition on 23 August 2017,
the original annual general meeting held on 23 August 2017 was
adjourned to 25 August 2017 (the “Adjourned AGM”) and details
of which were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
22 August 2017. Two independent non-executive Directors were
unable to attend the Adjourned AGM as a result of the sudden
arrangement.

Relationship

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between each other.

Independent Non-executive Directors
The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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In respect of code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors entered into an appointment
letter (the “Letter”) with the Company for a fixed term of two years
commencing from 18 March 2016 unless terminated by either party
thereto giving not less than three months’ prior written notice. On
26 February 2018, the Remuneration Committee approved that the
terms of the Letter of all the independent non-executive Directors
would remain unchanged starting from 18 March 2018 until further
notice. However, the articles of association of the Company provide
that every Director, including all the independent non-executive
Directors, shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being will retire from office by
rotation and be eligible for re-election by the Shareholders.

Directors’ Induction and Development

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company arranged a
seminar provided by our Hong Kong legal adviser for our Directors
as continuing professional trainings for corporate governance and
compliance purposes. Some Directors also participated in other
seminars according to their own preferences.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul is the chairman of the Board and Mr. Yeung
Sau Ming Boris is the deputy managing Director of the Board. The
respective roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
are assumed by different individuals and are clearly established
and segregated. Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul, the chairman of the Board,
is responsible for overseeing the marketing work and the contract
strategy of our Group and is appointed as our Group’s authorised
signatory under specialist contractor licensing. Mr. Yeung Sau Ming
Boris, the deputy managing Director of the Board, who performs the
duty of the chief executive, is responsible for overseeing the overall
management of our Group, including our daily operations, business
development, strategic planning and tendering. The chairman of the
Board ensures that all the Directors are properly briefed on issues
raised during the Board meetings and receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner.

Board Committees

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.
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Each committee is required to report back on its decisions or
recommendations to the Board on a timely basis, unless there are
any legal or regulatory restrictions imposed on it.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining the
relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; (c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; and (d)
assessing the Group’s corporate governance functions. The full
version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee
is made up of four independent non-executive Directors, including
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Chan Kee Huen Michael, Mr. Cheng Yan Kee and Professor Chung
Hung Kwan Barnabas. Both Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank (chairman
of the Audit Committee) and Mr. Chan Kee Huen Michael possess
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held two committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Summary of work during the year ended 31 March 2018

The Audit Committee held one meeting with the auditor, RSM Hong
Kong, (without the presence of the executive Directors) to discuss
and review the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2017
and recommended the same to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee also held another meeting (without the presence of the
executive Directors) to discuss and review the Group’s results for the
six months ended 30 September 2017 and recommended the same
to the Board for approval.

Other than the above, the Audit Committee also reviewed the
terms of the Group’s continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, and reviewed and discuss the Group’s risk
management and internal control function and its effectiveness, the
existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Group’s
overall corporate governance functions.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
full version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Nomination Committee is made up of five members including
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
Chan Kee Huen Michael, Mr. Cheng Yan Kee, Professor Chung Hung
Kwan Barnabas and Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

Summary of work during the year ended 31 March 2018

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

Board diversity policy

The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under this
policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms of factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates are
considered against various objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
and the compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination
of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; and (d) deciding
the remunerations with independence. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of five members including
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Ms.
Chan Lai Kuen, Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank, Professor Chung Hung
Kwan Barnabas and Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul.

The Remuneration Committee held two committee meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

Summary of work during the year ended 31 March 2018

The Remuneration Committee held two committee meetings to
review and approve the existing remuneration package and structure
of all the Directors and senior management independently and the
existing terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Senior management’s remuneration
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during the
year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
performing the corporate governance functions, and it accordingly
reviews and monitors the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and the senior management, and ensures
its policies and practices in compliance with relevant laws and
regulatory requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the auditor, RSM Hong Kong,
received HK$638,000 for provision of audit service and approximately
HK$43,300 for provision of tax filing service.

There were no disagreements between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of the auditor, RSM Hong
Kong, during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Directors’ and Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

All the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, RSM Hong Kong, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 59 to 66 of this annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

In respect of code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have an internal audit (the “IA”) function. Although the
Company did not establish a standalone IA department during
the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board put in place adequate
measures to perform the IA function at different aspects of the
Group as the Company considers that the close and regular
supervision by the executive Directors and senior management, and
the maintenance of internal control guidance and procedures on
the Group’s critical operational cycles could provide sufficient and
effective internal control and risk management functions.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information and
are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to identify,
evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to eliminate all risks
of failure.

There are also regular meetings held between the Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
progress payments from the customers, the efficiency in the use
of the Group’s resources in comparison to the budgets, and the
operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with the
regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of
the Directors and senior management so that significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are
timely and properly identified and dealt with in a proper manner.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of
risk management and internal control for the Group and the Board
had conducted an annual review of its effectiveness during the year
ended 31 March 2018 through the Audit Committee. Same as last
year’s practice, the Company engaged an external independent
internal control adviser to conduct a review on the internal control
procedures at both corporate level and business level (as agreed by
the Audit Committee). The review covered material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year ended 31 March 2018. The internal control
report has been circulated to the Audit Committee for review and
discussion. No significant areas of improvement which are required
to be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee have been
revealed.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group’s internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate.

The Board will review the need for the IA function on an annual basis.
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Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

° is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

° has included in its staff manual a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

° has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.

Training on inside information disclosure is provided to the Board to
enhance corporate governance.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
who is also the financial controller of the Company, is a full time
employee of the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Company Secretary undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
His biography is set out on page 48 of this annual report in the
section of “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”.

Investor Relations
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no changes in
the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Shareholders’ Rights

1.

The way in which shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business at 10/F, Liven House, 61 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong and may consist of several documents
in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the members concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

° at least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° at least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include
20 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

The procedures Shareholders can use to propose
a person for election as a Director

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected including that person’s biographical details, shall
have been lodged to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at 10/F, Liven House, 61 King Yip
Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, at least 7 days
before the date of the general meeting. The lodgement of notice
should also be in compliance with the other requirements of
the Listing Rules.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Any Shareholder(s) of the Company who wish to raise his/
their enquiries concerning the Company to the Board may
deliver his/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with the address at
10/F, Liven House, 61 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.
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Deed of Non-Competition

As disclosed in the prospectus issued by the Company dated
8 March 2016 (the “Prospectus”), New Grace Gain Limited (“New
Grace Gain”) and its ultimate beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming
Boris, Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert and Mr. Yue Suen Leung (together,
the “Covenantors”) executed a deed of non-competition dated
19 February 2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) containing certain
non-competition undertakings given in favour of the Group with
effect from the date of listing of the Company on 18 March 2016
(the “Listing Date”) and for so long as the shares of the Company
remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and the Covenantors are
regarded as controlling shareholders of the Company (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules), details of which are disclosed in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non-
Competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

With reference to the Joint Announcement made by the Company
and Blessing Well on 7 May 2018, the Company was notified by
New Grace Gain that after trading hours on 27 April 2018, Blessing
Well (as the purchaser), New Grace Gain (as the vendor) and its
ultimate beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris, Mr. Yue Suen
Leung and Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert (as the guarantors), entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which New Grace Gain agreed to sell and Blessing
Well agreed to purchase 300,000,000 shares of the Company,
representing 75% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of the Joint Announcement, for a total cash consideration
of HK$596,250,000 (the “Event of the Change of Substantial
Shareholders”). Completion of the abovementioned transaction took
place on 30 April 2018. Details of which are set out in the Joint
Announcement.

As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders,
New Grace Gain, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris, Mr. Yue Suen Leung and
Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert ceased to be the controlling and substantial
shareholders of the Company on 30 April 2018, and accordingly the
Deed of Non-Competition ceased to have effect on 30 April 2018.

On 29 April 2018, the Covenantors have provided a written
confirmation to the Company of their compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition since the Listing Date and up to 29 April 2018.
The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
reviewed compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition and were
satisfied that the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition had been
duly complied with for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders in
a balanced way. This year, the Group is pleased to present our
environmental, social and governance report for the year ended
31 March 2018 for the purpose of demonstrating our efforts on
sustainable developments to our stakeholders.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts, namely environmental
and social.

Major recent awards and recognitions
Environmental

e ENRNE

AEBERFEAHENTAREEEN

AERE  HEeNMKBEITEONER  EWE
BARFERR - ANFE AREMAREH
TE-N\FZA=THILEFENRE

HERERRS  ARRHERTEMER
SEERIFLNE S -

A ETIIRE £ AIM 827 P 8 2 3R 1%
HERERBRESHESIMGRE  AN/RER
HeEmERBD

pituis

THA T BRI MR A
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ISO 50001 : 2011
Energy Management System
EREREER

* upgraded in May 2017 WZ-Z—+t& A AFHH
* renewed in May 20177 WR-ZE—+tFERAFH

ISO 14001 : 2015*
Environmental
Management System
RIEEERAR
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Social

Family-Friendly Employer
FERERET

® 8 N & H &
Famia airadin Umplayars

ra

OHSAS 18001 : 2007
Occupational Health and
Safety Management System
BERERZZEREBAR

Green Organisation

REHE

w

Happy Company
NS S

2017 @

ISO 9001 : 2015*
Quality Management System
HEsEHEER

Juk

PE S — N

s o,
or = i

Manpower Developer

AF B

Charity events
BEEY

*

#

upgrade in May 2017
renewed in May 2017
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A EIE

Environmental Management Policy RIBEEEHE

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our
business activities.

To minimise environmental impacts concerning our site activities, we
shall:

Obtain and
registrations and permits.

renew the necessary environmental

implementation.

Commit to continual
performance.

¥ : StyBR— AR RARA o
ARRLESTRES WEE MR BANMTRTALARBEES
In-mﬂum E ﬁa

(—) R TP

S ERERENE NSRRI
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(xR EMER SN TARRE

(1) EREE XS
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) BRI AR

AN RERNERE TR  EEARERE
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&
&

reduce and eliminate pollution or any other o g
degradation of environment resulting from the production %Qu':&n&ﬁﬁfkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ’lﬁ Aol LA
process or from the use of goods and services.

Educate, train and motivate employees to carry out tasks in ° HAE -
an environmentally responsible manner. ) RE

AEEB AN TETBREPHHPINER
ABHRREAMERNEERERE -

RSBREMBRTREHNRBEENNTE TN

Comply with all the applicable legal requirements and the . BSFRTAE AR R T RS E BT
environmental aspects of the contractual obligations to which
the Group subscribes.

ERURBETENSHRE -

B Re it 48 A e T B S Bk

HiEALERE -
Reduce waste and minimise the consumption of resources. . WO EEM R ERBRE -

Try our endeavor to recycle practicable construction material ] EHMAORFT R TREH - HFB
in our design and construction process.

) U A 7 PR R SR ALY o

TR BEE TAYHIRESR
VTEH%%

Provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation . BEBRBRDERBMENZERERE
of environmental nuisance abatement and waste management.

WEEMBERCNEREEE -
licenses, . BEREEVTFNRRER  ZftE

EE&E?T °©

Encourage environmental protection among suppliers and . SEHHEEERSBENESRAREH
subcontractors.

Collect energy usage data for analysis and future planning and . WS RAEEBETOTLAR

AR EI R AT °

improvement of environmental . EEFENERRTER
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The Group’s environmental management system was accredited by
Accredited Certification International Limited with ISO 14001 : 2015
and ISO 50001 : 2011 certifications.

Al)  EMISSIONS

Emissions

The greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions of the Group were mainly
generated from scope 3. The Group always aims to reduce waste
and minimise the consumption of electricity in order to tackle GHG
emissions issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the NOx and SOx emitted
from the consumption of towngas were approximately 59,668
tonnes/million MJ of gas and approximately 298 tonnes/million MJ
of gas respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the SOx emitted from the
Group’s motor vehicles were approximately 11,612 gram.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the GHG emitted by
the Group was approximately 132,539 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tonCO,-eq).

The table below highlights our carbon footprint during the year ended
31 March 2018.

AREBMNIREE
AR~ A BEISO 14001
ISO 50001 : 20115 & o

Al)  BER

Ry
AEEMEERE (RSB )N EEE
HERE=HE o AE B AR ER R
LHEEEARE - RTRRE = R

& o

E@HL/%?%. %E/%-’ u?JL‘»E
2015 E M

2T \FZA=+—HIFE EFEH

H R0 R BE A S Y Kb E40 ¥ 4759,668
W,/ EEIKEFRENK208IE " EHEIIKE
Hame -

BHE_Z—)\F=ZH=1T—HLFE K&
B B P s | Y 4911,6125% °

HE-_Z—-)\FZA=+—HILFE K&
B BERUR = RS 49132,530M8 — S b ik g &
(E—EbmER)-

TERENEMEBEZ_ZE—\F=A=+—8H
EEEZHRETHE -
Emission

(approximately in
tonnes of CO,)
B2

Scope of GHG REREEE (= &1k e 48K 49 i 29)
Scope 1 — direct emission F-EHE-EEIERY 1,576
Scope 2 — indirect emission £ %ﬁ ke 35087 175
Scope 3 — other indirect emission FEZEHE - EMHEEFERY 130,788
Total (a) 45t (a) 132,539
Total average floor area #8515k 1 T AR

(approximately in m?) (b) (FEFF KL ED (b) 22,232
Intensity (tonnes of CO,/m?) (d)=(a)/(b) #E(ZERME S F5K) 0)=@)/ () 6.0

i = EZERBR A
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Hazardous waste ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that our business ~ EEZFTA » HFEERMPIOEBL R iETHB
does not generate any material amount of hazardous waste during BRIV SEELETRNEEEEY -

our construction process.

Non-hazardous waste BERBREY

Due to the business nature of our Group, certain construction waste ENAEENEREE  EHRMEILABREFR
is generated in our construction process. The construction waste  @E4SE TEEEZEY - REFEVEER
is disposed of at landfills or sold for recycling purposes. During the BHEERHEARER 2B BEZF )\
year ended 31 March 2018, the total construction waste disposed of F=ZA=+—HIFE " E AR R N
at landfills and sold for recycling was approximately 27,214 tonnes ENHERRREEEY 2 %ﬁ%ﬂ 4927,214
and approximately 33,580 kg respectively. Our Group always tries M K 4933,580F 5% o {E B MR R i Lil
our best endeavor to recycle practicable construction material in our B AEE-BHBHEKABRAEEM
design and construction process. #} o

L A LEL]
RS LR

&

MR SRERE
pokal B bE il
Pul lither into litter bag,
Mo littaring!

]
=
(U
el

The Group also adopts certain methods for the reduction of dust e FEUE TR - BB AR B K
emissions by applying water sprays and using canvas at our KA Ao [ EE - L\/{%@Uﬂﬂ 7 EE 4% B /Y
construction sites. e
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Moreover, certain machineries of the Group and those newly
purchased machineries complied with the emission standards of
Stage lIA of the European Union.

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there was
no material non-compliance with the applicable local rules and
regulations relating to air emissions, GHG emissions, water and land
discharges, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
in all material aspects.

A(ll)  USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the construction process
are electricity, water, diesel, petrol and acetylene. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group has implemented
environmental management policy and internal principles so as to
minimise wastage and avoid excessive usage of precious resources.
For example, certain construction wastewater is collected and treated
for reuse on construction sites for suitable construction process.
In addition, the Group uses water tank in order to reduce the
consumption of water at our construction site.

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

BIEME WBEMAA  RAABEXTE
W E 2 BRI R E R PEA  BEK
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Diesel

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the diesel consumed by
the Group was approximately 701,317 litres and its intensity was
approximately 31.5.

Electricity

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the electricity consumed by
the Group was approximately 324,285 kWh and its intensity was
approximately 14.6.

Water

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the water consumed by
the Group was approximately 199,054 m?® and its intensity was
approximately 9.0.

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within
our Group for environmental purpose. Details of which are further
disclosed in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources”
below.

Total packaging material used for finished products
Due to the business nature of our Group, we believe that it is not
applicable to our Group.

Alll)  THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

Protecting the environment is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. Our Group is committed to sustainable construction and
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Our Group is committed to delivering services with minimal impact
to the environment through the following principles:

° Focus on energy management throughout energy planning
including design, review, monitoring performance as critical
considerations within our core management process;

° Compliance with the environmental aspects of the applicable
legal requirements and the other requirements to which the
Group subscribes;

° Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met;

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles
throughout our business; and

° Continual improvement.

L
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group was awarded Hong BE_ZFT-\F=A=-F+—ALFE K&
Kong Green Organisation Certification, Energywi$e — Certificate — ERGEHPZESRERTERCHER
Basic Level, by Environmental Campaign Committee. B-ERERE-EBAT -

———

¥eng Kong
riwmum{'mkm
AR
KL Fosmtutions Lissted

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within AEETREB NIRERARENLR#

our Group mainly through the following measures: EREHRIZEIHS:

. Office power saving: Recommendation to turn off lights and . MAEMEE: ZENBRERARAR
air-conditioning when not in use and log off computer and turn RABHEEERZEN YREZ®
off the screen when not in use or during lunch hours. i %%ﬁﬁé?ﬁ&ﬁﬁf’aﬁ%‘ﬁ%ﬂ%&%ﬁ

BT o

Paper saving: Use of email and other computer system for . B R A - (5 P S % E A B B R
document review purposes, reduction in printing and use of BB R A S ED AL 5 A A 3R B R
recycled paper. 4K o
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. Reduction of the usage of bottled water: Recommendation to . WA ERBEK: ZRFERTHEAK
use reusable cups to reduce the use of plastic bottles. MRUAE R D B -

. LED T8 lamps: Implementation of LED T8 lamps phase by . T8 LED : DR L 8T8 LED & LA
phase for environmental protection purpose. BURIRBR -

e —————

7:00 p.m. (except for those construction sites being granted FFIE Z= 0 E7RFIE (fE 5l SR JE 4 jE 56

. Noise control: Site working hours restricted to 7:00 a.m. to . REES - MWRBRTHEREREASF LY
1+
5
construction noise permit). IRE BRI o
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B. SOCIAL
B() EMPLOYMENT

Employment

The Group’s employment policy manages its staff recruitment,
salary adjustments and promotions and equal opportunities and
non-discrimination (such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family status, sexual orientation, nationality and religion). As at
31 March 2018, the Group had 2 employees who are not Chinese.
Our Group’s employment policy is structured to comply with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486),
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 487) and Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) of
the Laws of Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2018, to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify any material
non-compliance or breach of legislation.

The Group has a written policy on compensation, dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, staff benefits, staff training and health and safety.
The Group also targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
working environment and career growth opportunities to our staff.

The Group is always highly committed to attracting and retaining
suitable talents in the competitive labour market in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the industry.

The Group has been recognised as a Family-Friendly Employer
since 2014 by the Family Council. The Group was also recognised
as a Happy Company in 2017 by the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation and Manpower Developer in 2018 by Employees
Retraining Board.

2017

L LR |
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MEDEAE " s
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As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 119 employees. Most of the
Group’s employees are foundation workers in Hong Kong. Below are

certain key charts in relation to our employment aspects.

RZE—NF=ZA=+—8 ~AEBH119%
BE - AEBARIEDEELEBHETA-

ATREEEIENE TEEER -

2018 Employee distribution by gender
—E-\FRIEMNE S 2 ETHA

W Male 3% W Female %

2018 Employee distribution by age
—E-\FRFREH 2 EITHY

W 18-30

H 31-45 W 46-60 W > 60
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B(l) HEALTH AND SAFETY

et S ™

\ogn

The Group’s health and safety policy is to achieve a safety-working
environment which maintains a high standard of the safety, health
and welfare and to take every reasonably practicable safety measure
to protect all people working on site and the public from danger, and
to take all possible measures to minimise the nuisance generated to
the nearby area.

Compliance with the law and contractual requirements is regarded as
the minimum standard of safety, health and welfare in our strategy
at all times. We are committed to improving the health and safety
performance continuously through regular training, inspection and
audit. Notwithstanding that our ultimate aim is the elimination of
all accidents, our immediate target is zero fatalities and to limit the
accident frequency rate to less than 0.6 reportable accident per
100,000 man-hour. We recorded zero reportable accident during the
year ended 31 March 2018.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, to the best of our Directors’ HE-_ZT-N\F=ZA=1T—HLEFE BE
knowledge, there was no occurrence of any fatal accident. =g %ﬂ I%?ﬁ‘ifi Al Bap B AN o
Internal and external safety training A &R R S &8 &= & 3 A

Safety is always our prime concern. All our staff are briefed and BM—EBERLE2REFZE - BMEHERE
trained with safety knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone  EEETHENRERLZE2HHE  UHEREA
understands the risks of the task they are involved, has safety HTHBESEHIIERR TA#HERZE2EZR
consciousness and is familiar with safety precautions. ABLETEEE -

Our safety department is responsible for advising and assisting BN LZ2HMEaERERE - HEREE
management, project and operation staff, implementing our safety AEREEERBEY  UWEHETERMANEZ 2
management system, setting up in-house rules and providing safety ERHIE - HEARRE - WIREZE2EM
information and training. R o

Our subcontractors are formally notified and required to comply with BMTEERBAKRMANDBEEEERKE
our policy and safety procedures. BTFRMANBRRELZR2EFF o

To ensure our safety policy is well implemented, we will provide BRERBBIETRMANL 2R - BMER®
adequate resources, and have different degrees of disciplinary action, HAMEANER  THERTZEHER

including warning and dismissal, to one who fails to follow the safety  REMABERTRREZENLEES B2
policy and requirements. ZERARK -

Our Board, management, all supervisory and safety personnel ZMMESE ERE FBEEENLZEA
positively implement the safety policy and make every effort to meet BYRBBEBRLZEWE  WBNERTENY
the target of zero accident. HERR -
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Our corporate safety management committee at least annually
updates our safety policy in accordance with the latest legislation
and safety regulations.

An independent health and safety audit at the corporate level is
conducted annually in order to verify the effectiveness, efficiency and
reliability of safety and health management system against criteria
stipulated as well as to identify areas for improvement.

The Group’s occupational health and safety management system
has been certified in compliance with OHSAS 18001 : 2007 by
Accredited Certification International Limited.
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B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always promotes a continuous learning and development
culture within our Group and provides an in-house training for all
new staff. We also have a training sponsorship program in order
to encourage and support our staff to pursue their professional
development through external training.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group committed not
less than 1,500 man-hours to both external and in-house training.

B(V) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material risks inherent to child labour and forced labour.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, we did not identify any material breaches in such area.

B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group was assessed and certified by Accredited Certification
International Limited that our quality management system, which
governs our daily operation for quality control and improvement, had
met the accreditation requirements of ISO 9001 : 2015.

As discussed in the “Health and Safety” section, our subcontractors
are formally notified and required to comply with our policy and safety
procedure.
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The Group also holds regular visits for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by our suppliers and work performed
by our subcontractors.

B(Vl) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group’s principal business is the provision of foundation services
in Hong Kong. Therefore, the products and services we provided
have limited relationship with advertising and labeling. Nevertheless,
the Group is highly committed to delivering quality services to our
customers through flexibility and capability in providing of foundation
designs, contributing professional advices and making appropriate
adjustments. We tackle any issue raised by our customers by
rectifying it within a reasonable time and ensuring our customers’
satisfaction.

As usual, the Group obtained letters of appreciation from our
customers for our quality services provided for.

A Arigs zianannas: ang
S

e
RN NTEES

Data Privacy and Intellectual Property Rights

The Group always emphasizes the importance of the protection of
intellectual property rights and we have marketed our business in
Hong Kong using [ as our trademark which was properly registered
in Hong Kong in 2015. The Group would only use lawful software
licenses for compliance purpose. There are also written policies in
our staff manual to govern the areas in the control of confidential
information.
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B(VIl) ANTI-CORRUPTION

Integrity is one of the core values of our Group. There are written
policies in our staff manual to govern the areas in the avoidance of
bribery and corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering, conflicts
of interests, allowable acceptance of gifts or entertainment and the
control of confidential information. It strictly applies to all levels of
our staff.

A formal whistle-blowing policy was adopted in the second quarter
of 2017 for corporate governance purpose.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we are not aware of any
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our staff during the year ended 31 March 2018.

B(VII) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Although there is no specific strategy in community investment, the
Group takes our responsibilities to the communities of Hong Kong
very seriously. The Group donates to certain charitable organisations
every year. In May 2017, the Group participated to contribute the
prominent service and support to the Hong Kong Red Cross Flag
Day 2017.
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As a Family-Friendly Employer and a Happy Company, we always
show our kindness and care to our staff. There are written policies
in our staff manual, including the education sponsorship program to
our staff, a long service award to our staff for working over 5 years,
a continuous 6 days’ paternity leave for each confinement of our
male staff’s spouse/partner, a continuous 6 days’ marriage leave for
our staff and a continuous 2 days’ compassionate leave for our staff
for social responsibilities purposes.
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Long service awards & Hi fR & K 88

Besides, there are at least three corporate event functions for our
staff annually. In order to make these events joyful and successful,
our senior and top management are always generous to make kind
contributions on occasion such as “lucky draw gifts” or “games
prizes” to our staffs.

Lucky draw events
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Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul (“Mr. Yu”), aged 68, is our executive
Director and Chairman since July 2015. He is also the chairman
of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Remuneration
Committee. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the marketing
work and contract strategy of our Group and is appointed as our
Group’s authorised signatory under specialist contractor licensing.
Mr. Yu is also appointed as the Technical Director to act for the
purpose of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) for K. H. Foundations Limited. He has over 40 years of
experience in the foundation, construction and engineering industry in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yu founded K. H. Foundations Limited in 1985 and
has been the director of K. H. Foundations Limited since then. Over
the 30 years of directorship in K. H. Foundations Limited, Mr. Yu had
the opportunity to go through various development and construction
projects of both the public sector and the private sector in Hong Kong
including, but not limited to schools, hotels, infrastructure projects
and government buildings.

Mr. Yu graduated from Syracuse University in New York, the United
States and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering and
a Master’'s degree in Engineering Administration in May 1973 and
December 1974, respectively. In 1981, Mr. Yu was a director of Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals and was subsequently elected as chairman
of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1988 and served as chairman
until 1989.

Mr. Yu was appointed by the government to sit in various advisory
bodies since 1982. He was appointed as a member of the Board
of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries from 1982
to 2003, a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board from 1992 to
1996, a member of the Registered Contractors’ Disciplinary Board
Panel from 1993 to 1996, a member of the Council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Education from 1994 to 1998, a member of the
Administrative Appeals Board from 1994 to 2000, a member of
the Hospital Authority from 2001 to 2009 and the chairman of the
Hospital Governing Committee of Tuen Mun Hospital from 2004 to
2014. Currently, he is a member of the Hospital Governing Committee
of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital, and a member of the
Advisory Board of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. He was awarded
Justice of the Peace (Non-official) by the government in 1989 and
is a member in the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in
1994, In 2007, Mr. Yu was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He was
admitted as a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Builders
and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers in May 1997.
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He is currently an independent non-executive director of Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00513), company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 51, is our
executive Director and Deputy Managing Director since July 2015.
He is also a member of our Nomination Committee. Mr. Yeung
is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall management of
our Group, including our daily operations, business development,
strategic planning and tendering. Mr. Yeung has more than 20
years of experience in the construction industry in Hong Kong. He
took part in the foundation works and superstructure construction
works in construction projects of both the public sector and the
private sector in Hong Kong including, but not limited to schools,
hotels, residential premises and government buildings. Mr. Yeung
joined our Group in 2008 and was appointed as a director of K. H.
Foundations Limited during the same period. He is also the director
of K. H. Civil Engineering Limited, K. H. Machinery Limited and K.
H. Piling & Engineering Limited since each of their incorporation
date, respectively. He has been appointed as a director of Tactful
Building Company Limited (“Tactful”) since July 1993. Tactful is a
Registered General Building Contractor, and is mainly involved in
building construction works.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a professional diploma
in Building Surveying in November 1989. He obtained his Bachelor’s
degree of Science with distinction in Building Surveying from the
University of Greenwich (previously known as Thames Polytechnic)
in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He subsequently obtained his
Master’'s degree of Science in Real Estate Development from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. Yeung is a Registered Professional Surveyor by profession.
He was elected as an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors in April 1993, and as the professional associate of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in December 1992. Mr.
Yeung owned 40% of the issued share capital of New Grace Gain
which in turn held 300,000,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Yeung
was deemed to be interested in the shares held by New Grace Gain
under the SFO as at 31 March 2018. As a result of the Event of the
Change of Substantial Shareholders, Mr. Yeung ceased to have any
interests in the shares of the Company on 30 April 2018.
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Ms. Chan Lai Kuen (“Ms. Chan”), aged 54, is our executive
Director since July 2015. She is also a member of our Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing the
finance and account management aspects and as well as the
corporate finance functions in our Group. Ms. Chan has over 20
years of experience in accounting, taxation and financial assignments
especially with companies in Hong Kong construction industry. Ms.
Chan joined our Group in 2006 and was appointed as a director of
K. H. Foundations Limited during the same period. Ms. Chan was
appointed as a director of K. H. Civil Engineering Limited in 2012.

Ms. Chan was the assistant accountant of Wing Fai International
Limited from 1994 to 1998 and has been the accountant of Tactful
since 1998, respectively and is currently a senior accounting
manager of Tactful. Tactful is a Registered General Building
Contractor, and is mainly involved in building construction works.

Ms. Chan obtained her Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy from the
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as The City University of
Hong Kong) in November 1992. She is a Certified Public Accountant
and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2000. She has also been a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2004.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Kee Huen Michael (“Mr. Chan”), aged 66, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 19 February
2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chan has over 35 years’ experience in external
audit, IT audit, training, accounting and finance, company secretarial
and corporate administration, MIS management, internal audit,
information security, risk management and compliance experience.
Mr. Chan is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow and specialist in Information Technology of CPA Australia and
an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He was admitted as a certified information systems auditor
with the Information Systems Audit and Control Association in 1985
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2000. Mr. Chan
was admitted as a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators
in 2000 and elected as a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors
in 1997.

Mr. Chan is the chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited,
and an independent non-executive director of Lansen Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00503) since 2010 and was an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University from 2009 to 2014. With effect from
10 June 2016, Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director by Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited
(stock code: 02277). With effect from 18 August 2017, Mr. Chan
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of China
Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 00164). Mr. Chan
worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited from 1991 to 1997 and
his last position was general manager, compliance and corporate
affairs. He was employed by Dao Heng Bank in 1996 as the group
auditor (which subsequently acquired by DBS Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited) and he ceased working for the bank in 2004 with his
last position as managing director and head of compliance, Hong
Kong and Greater China. Mr. Chan was also the group financial
controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the
director of quality assurance of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 2005 and the deputy general manager of the
compliance department of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Ltd. from 2006 to 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1976 and was
awarded the postgraduate diploma in business administration from
the University of Surrey in March 1998.
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Mr. Cheng Yan Kee (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 63, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2016. He
is the chairman of our Remuneration Committee and a member of
our Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Cheng is an
experienced professional in the structural and foundation design and
supervision of building structures. Mr. Cheng obtained his Bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering from Lehigh University, the United States
of America in May 1977. Mr. Cheng has been a Fellow of the
Institution of Civil Engineers since 2002. He has been a member of
the American Society of Civil Engineers since 1981 and a member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since 1980. Mr. Cheng
is an Authorised Person and Registered Structural Engineer under
the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
He is also a Class 1 structural engineer registered with the National
Administration Board of Engineering Registration (Structural) of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He is the managing director
of H. K. Cheng & Partners Limited, an engineering consultancy firm
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was elected a Fellow of the Institution of Structural
Engineers in 1990 and served as President of such institution, being
the world’s leading professional body for qualifications and standards
in structural engineering, for 2013. Mr. Cheng was chairman of the
Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University from January 2013
to December 2015. He was reappointed to serve a second term
from January 2016 to December 2018. He was a member of the
Hospital Authority between 2009 and 2015, the Hong Kong Housing
Authority between 2000 and 2006 and the Town Planning Board
between 2006 and 2012. He served as a chairman of the Corruption
Prevention Advisory Committee under the Independent Commission
Against Corruption between 1999 and 2000. He is a council member
of China Soong Ching Ling Foundation, a charitable organization
based in Beijing. He was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2000
and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2015.
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Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 55, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 19 February
2016. He is chairman of our Audit Committee and a member of
our Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cheung has been appointed
as company secretary and chief financial officer of China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 03778) in 2011. He has
also been an independent non-executive director of Continental
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00513) since 2010. He obtained a MBA from
the University of Technology, Sydney in September 1995 and a
professional diploma in Accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November
1985. He has been admitted as an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1989 and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1994.
Mr. Cheung was a part-time tutor at The Open University of Hong
Kong from March 2009 to July 2011. He was an executive director
of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited (now known as Digital Domain
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00547) from 2004 to 2007, and acted as the
chief financial officer and qualified accountant from 2007 to 2008.
He was an independent non-executive director of LJ International
Inc. (NASDAQ: JADE) from June 2007 to October 2007, a director
of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Company Limited (now Quants Capital (Hong
Kong) Limited), a subsidiary of e-Lux Corporation (JASDAQ: 6811)
(now known as Quants Inc.) from 2001 to 2003, he was in charge
of the telecommunications value added services in Hong Kong,
Taiwan and the PRC. He was a director of New Media Corporation,
a subsidiary of e-New Media Company Limited (now known as ENM
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00128) from 1999 to 2000.

Professor Chung Hung Kwan Barnabas (“Professor Chung”),
aged 70, was appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on 19 February 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Professor
Chung is an authorised person (surveyor) registered under the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
a registered professional surveyor (building surveyor) under the
Surveyors Registration Ordinance (Chapter 417 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). He is currently an Honorary Professor in the Department of
Real Estate and Construction of The University of Hong Kong and the
Chairman of the Board of Membership of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. In addition, he was an honorary advisor of the Guangdong
Province Association of Engineer Consultants from 2011 to 2015 and
a visiting professor in the Department of Building & Real Estate of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University from July 2014 to September 2015.
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Senior Management

Mr. Wong Wai Nam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 55, serves as the director
— technical of our Group. He is responsible for overseeing the
technical designs of foundation works and technical department of
our Group. Mr. Wong joined our Group as director — technical in
March 2014 and has over 30 years of experience in the foundation,
construction and engineering industry. Mr. Wong obtained a higher
certificate in civil engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1986.
Mr. Wong became a Registered Structural Engineer in Hong Kong in
August 2000 and a registered inspector in Hong Kong in May 2012.
He has been admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers since September 1998 and as a Chartered Engineer
of the Institution of Structural Engineers, the United Kingdom, since
February 1998. Mr. Wong was employed as technical director
of Meinhardt (C&S) Limited from 2009 to 2014. Mr. Wong was
previously employed in the foundation, construction and engineering
industry with several companies and the Housing Department, the
executive arm of the Hong Kong Housing Authority between 1983
and 1992.

Mr. Tse Wai Kwong (“Mr. Tse”), aged 53, serves as the project
director of our Group. He is responsible for the overall management
of our Group’s tendering process, foundation work, plant and
resource allocation, time and cost control and quality, safety,
environmental and energy management. Mr. Tse joined our Group as
senior contracts manager in January 2014 and has over 25 years of
experience in the foundation, construction and engineering industry.
He was promoted to project director of our Group in April 2015. Mr.
Tse obtained a master’s degree in civil and structural engineering
from The University of Sheffield, the United Kingdom in December
1991 and obtained a higher diploma in civil engineering from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1988. Mr. Tse was employed as manager
in Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited, a subsidiary of Hsin
Chong Construction Group Ltd. (stock code: 00404), between 2010
and 2014. Mr. Tse was previously employed in the foundation,
construction and engineering industry with several companies
between 1988 and 2010.
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Mr. Fung Kin Shing (“Mr. Fung”), aged 45, serves as the project
director of our Group. Mr. Fung was approved as the authorised
signatory of K. H. Foundations Limited under the Buildings
Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in December
2014. He is responsible for the overall management of our Group’s
tendering process, foundation work, cost and quality control and
safety management. Mr. Fung joined our Group as project director
in September 2013 and has over 23 years of experience in the
foundation, construction and engineering industry. Mr. Fung obtained
a Master’s degree in Civil Engineering from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology in November 2002 and obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Building Management from the University of
Northumbria at Newcastle, the United Kingdom, in June 1997. Mr.
Fung became a registered professional engineer in civil engineering
(general) with the Institution of Engineers, Australia, in September
2006. He was elected as member of the Chartered Professional
Engineer of Engineers Australia in the Civil College in September
2006. He has been admitted as a member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since September 2014, as a member of the
Institution of Civil Engineers since September 2011, as a Chartered
Engineer of the Engineering Council since October 2011 and as
a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil) from June 2016 to May
2018. Mr. Fung was employed as a technical staff in the capacity
of a senior field geotechnical engineer in On U Pty Ltd, Australia in
2013. He was employed as senior geotechnical engineer in Aargus
Pty Ltd, Australia between 2012 and 2013. Mr. Fung was previously
employed in the foundation, construction and engineering industry
with several companies and the Water Supplies Department of the
government between 1992 and 2011.

Mr. Shum Hoi Luen (“Mr. Shum”), aged 43, joined our Group in
August 2016 and was appointed as the Company Secretary and
financial controller of the Company in October 2016. Mr. Shum is
responsible for overseeing the finance and accounting functions and
corporate finance and compliance matters of the Group. Mr. Shum
obtained a Bachelor of degree (Honors) in Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 1997. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr.
Shum is also currently the company secretary of Infinity Development
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 00640), a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 9 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of Directors’ Report.
In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance and
Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group has also
reviewed its environmental policies and performance from time
to time in order to minimise the environmental impacts from our
operations.

The Group targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
working environment and career growth opportunities to our staff in
order to maintain a family-friendly relationship with our staff.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and subcontractors
(based on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality).

During the year, there was no material dispute or argument between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers and
subcontractors.

Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 23 to 40 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the SFO, the Listing Rules and
other relevant laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned,
there were no material breaches of or non-compliance with the
relevant rules and regulations by our Group that have significant
impacts on the business and operations of our Group.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 10 to 22.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2018 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 72.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 144 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

Use of IPO Proceeds

Details of the use of IPO Proceeds are set out on page 9 of this
annual report.

Share Capital

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

Share Options

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 February 2016
(the “2016 Share Option Scheme”). No share option has been granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2018, calculated
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
HK$84,148,000 (2017: approximately HK$84,316,000). The share
premium account of the Company is available for distribution or
paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Articles and provided that immediately following the distribution
or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$70,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate sales to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 80.8% of the Group’s total revenue
and sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 42.9% of the Group’s total revenue during the year
ended 31 March 2018. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 94.0% of
the Group’s total purchases and approximately 75.0% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the
largest supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the subcontractor of
the Group accounted for approximately 73.6% of the Group’s total
purchases and approximately 23.5% subcontracting fees during the
year ended 31 March 2018 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the shares of the Company) had any interest in the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul (Chairman)

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris (Deputy Managing Director)
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kee Huen Michael

Mr. Cheng Yan Kee

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank

Professor Chung Hung Kwan Barnabas
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As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders,
it is expected that all of the Directors will resign with effect from
such date as being required by Blessing Well or the earliest time
permitted under the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the
“Takeovers Code”) issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong or the Stock Exchange, whichever is the later. Blessing
Well intends to nominate new Directors to the Board with effect from
the earliest time permitted under the Takeovers Code or the Listing
Rules or any other later time as it thinks appropriate.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

Changes in Directors’ Information

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 41 to 48 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Permitted Indemnity

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622))
in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the year and as
at the date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant to which
the Company shall indemnify any Director against any liability, loss
suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection with
any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being a
Director, and in which the judgement is given in his favour or in which
he is acquitted. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Directors’ Report and “Related Party
Transactions” in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.
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Disclosure of Interests

Directors’
Corporation

Interests in the Company and Associated

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

KR
B RAD T AR A B A9

RZZF-NF=ZA=1t—8 EFERNARQ

SHMEBZE(EERAESFIIE 1I7n<f'§’lJ%XV
R  HEARD REFTEARER
F R ERPIEI2MRBTFENE AT
RENEERAR  ARBERETREAS
THAEARAMEB X ER AR IT

(i) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company () RAEAXFEBERNGTFRE
Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held shareholding
EENA BEtEE Frsikia 88 KREBS
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 75%
(“Mr. Yeung”) (Note 2) corporation (Note 1)
BABREAE (B EE D E2) 2R E R iEEa))

(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of associated

corporation

(i) REBZESBEROEFR

Number of
shares held

Percentage of
shareholding

Name of associated Nature of in associated in associated

Name of Director corporation interest corporation corporation

B 48 Bk 5% G ER

EENA HEBEB KRS HEME Fifs g3 & B KBEES L

Mr. Yeung (Note 2) New Grace Gain Beneficial owner 400 40%

15 %% & (Bt 51 2) EmEAA

Notes: B & -

1. These shares were directly held by New Grace Gain. New Grace Gain 1. Z L) BHNew Grace GainE#ZE#FA ©

is 40% beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung and therefore, Mr. Yeung was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by New Grace Gain under

the SFO.

2. As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders,
Mr. Yeung ceased to have any interests in the shares of the Company
and New Grace Gain ceased to be an associated corporation of the

Company on 30 April 2018.

New Grace Gainf|HBELEERSHER
40% @ Ft - RIBFEHFRBEE - 5k
AR B New Grace Gain# B &) & 17
PEEAER -

2. HAEERRSEEM - —N\FmA
=+Aa- Tﬁ?ﬁiTﬁEA$ Tﬂ‘if’ﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁ
f?cﬂ%“ » MNew Grace Gainff A&7

T*EH&F/XE °©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Company FERRRARB 2# 2

As at 31 March 2018, the following interests and short positions of RZZBE-NF=ZA=+—8 U TFTAERER
5% or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company AR R G% A EZ2EZ AR
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the BRSNRAQRIRIEZEF KB EKPIE336
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: BEERF  EmEZMA:

Percentage of

Number of interest in our

Name Nature of interest shares held Company

HAQE

wE BB EEME Fifs g3 & B HAENBEDEE

New Grace Gain (Note 1) (Bf7E1) Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%

EmBEBAA

Mr. Yeung (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
15 58 A4 (P 5E1) R EEE R

Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert (“Mr. Lau”) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

(Note 1)

RFER AR EEDEFED R EEE R

Mr. Yue Suen Leung (“Mr. Yue”) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

(Note 1)

RAEREE(REEDHEED R EEE R
Note: B &
1. These shares were held by New Grace Gain. New Grace Gain is owned as to 1. #% % 121 BANew Grace GainffA ° New Grace

GainH 155t E « Bl ERRTEDBIIFHLI0%
30%K30% ° IRIBEEHFRAEGD - HEE - 2
FERREEZBHE AP New Grace Gainff
BERARBIRNDFHEREER  MimLE - B4t
RRGTERNAR —HEIERBRR - 1554 - Bk
ERAREEWIERETRMATHELE — BT
AL -

40% by Mr. Yeung, 30% by each of Mr. Lau and Mr. Yue respectively. Each of
Mr. Yeung, Mr. Lau and Mr. Yue was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by New Grace Gain under the SFO, while Mr. Yeung, Mr.
Lau and Mr. Yue were a group of controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr.
Yeung, Mr. Lau and Mr. Yue are not actual concert parties under the definition
of the Takeovers Codes.

HAEXEZRREeHEMH —N\FM@MA=+AH -
New Grace Gain - Tﬁ%i %‘Jﬁ%i&??ﬁi%é
TBERAABRMDPEAEAERS -

As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders, each of
New Grace Gain, Mr. Yeung, Mr. Lau and Mr. Yue ceased to have any interests
in the shares of the Company on 30 April 2018.

R EXFIEEN  R=FT-\F=A=+
—B BREXIESFRARE BB EEDN
o | —EPTE cEREmIN  WERMMAA
iEié-E.:E/JETE}Mﬁ&,ﬁﬁiéﬂ%ﬂ%%&lﬁ%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no person, other
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ Interests in the Company and Associated Corporation”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded VA RS 8% 2 A2 I AR 17 5 A B I 1 Hh 2 e 2 ok
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO. KB o
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As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial Shareholders,
Blessing Well has become the controlling and substantial shareholder
of the Company since 30 April 2018 while New Grace Gain, Mr.
Yeung, Mr. Lau and Mr. Yue ceased to be the controlling and
substantial shareholders of the Company on 30 April 2018.
Rights to Purchase Shares or Debentures of
Directors

Save as disclosed in the section of “Share Option” and “Disclosure
of Interests” in this report, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Continuing Connected Transactions

A summary of material related party transactions is disclosed in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction for the
two years ended 31 March 2017 and 2018 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Group that are fully exempted from
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this report.

Events after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements
and elsewhere in this annual report, there have been no other
material events occurring after 31 March 2018 and up to the date
of this report.

HEXrZRREeHEHF a2/ \FHA=
THR BECKRAARBNZERBRERE
BRE MAZZET—/\FHA=+H " New
Grace Gain * B%4E - Bl ERKREETH
BEEARRMIZERBERERREERE -

EERERMDNIEREZNERN

FRANSR S [REAE | e [ R | S AP I R
EI ENESFHFEEFSEAZEBIAKE
FRBERFNEMNRKHAERTAEEE
ARRBEMREFMEwm 2 EH - TFEITE
TRZFERN: ARE] - BER AR S EE
B = PNCIEARES G = PN AVA S C S
B BEEF A RS E A EMEE 2 ZFE
I

BEBRERIS
BABBARGBMEHNGEAVEREW
H7 o HEZTE—tFERZFTE-NF=ZA=
T—HIEREFENRSEKRRNEE 2 FE
MiER S - RIBE LTRAE14ATEN)EE SR
HHRPETE R E  FEEHLAA
BEETE -

BHEAK
RGP BB TS 5 A LA A R B R T ]
BERHEBERLERRTRAL -

M RBFHRE

BREADADEABSNERRBESEHA
ARARBE-T—\F=ZA=+—BLLF
EREERREAPERE TR

EMABFBRE -
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Annual General Meeting

It is proposed that the annual general meeting (the “2018 AGM”)
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 will be held on
a date to be fixed by the Board, and a notice convening the 2018
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong, who will retire at the
2018 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment RSM Hong Kong as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

8 3 % BRI | EH

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K. H. GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K. H. Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
67 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

RSM

RAEEERERAD
2RRR

(KRB EFBEMA L HRAA)
BR

EECDERINHENFEOTE143E QI I K E =
BERARREMBAR(ERE]Z4RA
MBRE WEAMBEBRREBER_Z N
FZA=t-BZEAMBRARNREBEERZ
ABLFEZGFARERAEMEEKER - 4
ERDEPRNEARERER  UREA
MHEBRRMEBREIZETHEMRE) -

= =garay
[=]

4HI

AR REGARUBHRRERERE
MRS (EE SRS RMBZEE
MBHRELEN(BEVBREERDEEM
NFHRE EEER-_ZT-N\F=ZA=+
—AZGAMBRRAAREBEZRALFE
ZEEUBRARGRATRE F YO ER
BERAKRINBEEREZSHEH -

BRERE
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Key Audit Matter

AR TR EIA

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, HAREZFEABRBEEZF2EFEHE R
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ABHAPEGEMBERECERRAEE
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the ZEIB ZEHENRNESEREBBERATH
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a HEARHEEANERE MaSTeH%s
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a HRHEN 2 ER - BEHN cBREZ

separate opinion on this matter. The key audit matter we identified EEA:

are:

1) Revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts 1) BEAOZWE R nHER

2)  Liquidated damages for delays in completion of a contract 2 BREHEHAHNTHERZENSD

Key Audit Matter
HEEZSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESEERTEREERERSENS E

Revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts

BEAH WS REFED

(Refer to note 5(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements)

(BB # & 81 5 #R % B it 5(a))

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts amounted
to approximately HK$225,579,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018.

BHE_Z-)/\F=ZA=+—HIFE X EEEXREEE
& 82 W 5 4 /225,579,000 7T ©

Due to the contracting nature of the business, revenue
and profit recognition involves a significant degree of
judgement made by management, with estimates being
made to:

HREBZAHNME - SR EAR WG R = RIED
BREBEZHE  WHATEHEELRSR:

= assess the total contract costs;

FHGRE MR

— assess the stage of completion of the contract;

ARz EREE

= assess the revenue and costs associated with
variation orders;

AHERTREEEAH e kKA :

060 K. H. Group Holdings Limited | £ %I £ E %= %5 R A 7

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation of
revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts
included:

%f—%ﬁ MERENEEESN IR R MR MNER ZEF
B

— obtaining an understanding of the performance and
status of all major contracts through discussion with
management and key staff;
FEEEEENTIEE THm ESMAETELRY
BMBITRIBRZT#

— corroborating management’s position through the
examination of externally generated evidence, such
as customers’ correspondence;
FRETIINBBIREGINEFBA)EEEREENL

=

— examining, on samples basis, the contracts and
certifications of work performed;
IHBEEEESANRETA 2 TIERRE

—  performing substantive testing on costs incurred to
date;

RESTELENRAETAERSE

— discussing and understanding management’s
estimates for total contract costs and forecast
costs to complete, including taking into account the
historical accuracy of such estimates;

AR TREEEBLS KA &R T A TE R KR
I PIEERBBABER BT ERME:
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BREEZSE ESEERTEERARERSENSE

—  appropriately provide for liquidated damages for — comparing the percentage of completion for contracts
delays in completion of the construction works; to the proportion of contract costs for works
and performed to date bear to the total estimated contract
RERTHREETIRZBZOELEZREE X costs;

2Ei25BTK IR E DK AN BT SR
—  appropriately provide for loss making contracts. BBt B M TR B DL

AEESOIELEES B -

— using the knowledge obtained from the above
testing, assessing whether any provisions for
liguidated damages or loss making contracts made
by management were appropriate; and
ERB LR ERzRM  FHEEERELS
FEBENIEHZEMBERETAE R

— assessing, on samples basis, whether contract
revenue recognised in relation to variation orders
met the applicable criteria in Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 11 “Construction Contracts”.
UHEEEFER IRE T REANCOR S EET
EEABEAERENRIEEAN INERZE -
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Key Audit Matter
BREEZSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ESEERTEERARERSENSE

Liquidated damages for delays in completion of a
contract

FH—ESHNTHERZENS

(Refer to note 5(d) and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements)

(2B 2 81 7 10 5 M 3E6(0) T A #.20)

The Group has been negotiating the final settlement
amount of a completed contract with a customer. The
customer indicated that it is seeking to deduct from the
final settlement amount the sum of HK$23,450,000 for
liquidated damages arising from delays in completion of
the contract.

EEE - HE-ZERFPERHECTKANNRKREE
PE - BFRTERRANTKIERELENENDR
D XA B 42 4% B 3K 1E 23,450,000 7T ©

The Directors are of the opinion that the negotiations
with the customer are still in the initial stage and
based on the opinion of an independent professional
consultant, believe that the customer’s claim for
such liquidated damages is unlikely to succeed and
accordingly, the Group has not recognised any amounts
in respect of liquidated damages for delays in completion
of contract in the consolidated financial statements.
EERR BEPHNERDEVRRBR BEREBBEYE
FEANER BEERREFPAHURHNSHRREAKRA
eIy - At EEBEVERGSUBREPHREH
BRTRIERZENCHRABEMSEE °

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgement made by the Directors
in determining the possible outcomes of the negotiation
with the customer and whether it is necessary to
recognise any amount in respect of liquidated damages
for delays in completion of contract.
HREENETETPERMNAIEERLEEFERA
e THERZ ENCHRAEMAERFTIELERKR
HE HESHLAEERNRERERSEE -
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Our procedures in relation to the liquidated damages for
delays in completion of contract included:

EFRAMANTRERZENSHBZEFBH:

— examining the related construction contract
documents and correspondence with the customer;

EEHAEEANXTREZEFPMBAXME:

— examining the analysis prepared by the independent
professional consultant engaged by the Group;

EE BEEBEMZEBYERERRENDN

— evaluating of the independence and professional
competence of the independent professional
consultant engaged by the Group;
it BEEEMZEREBUEXERNBIERER

&k,
Be

— challenging the basis for the Group’s assessment
that it is not necessary to recognise any amounts
in respect of liquidated damages for delays in
completion of contract; and
it EEBEARARETURERENTKERZELD
THRAEMESEOMEELE: R

— assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in respect of the status, progress and estimated
outcome of the negotiation with customer as set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
i EEEAESES M mRMT20MEEETS
HERzRE EEREFERIRESSRS -
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

H &+t
EFAHAMANAE - KANBIEFR
RERZ2HER  EREAMBERER
BEEMNERZRBERESD -
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B L% A 3RS

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B L% B 3RS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tsang Kit Fong, Maria.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two,
28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

29 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER GOMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeEakHMEZEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5E TExT F#& T
Revenue U 25 7 225,579 125,689
Cost of sales $HE KA (222,759) (121,014)
Gross profit EF 2,820 4,575
Other income H Ao g A 8 137 171
Administrative expenses TERAX (30,624) (38,203)
Loss from operations REMBER (27,667) (33,457)
Finance costs & AR 10 (1,430) (936)
Loss before tax PREiAIE R (29,097) (34,393)
Income tax credit Fris i = 11 3,907 544
Loss and total comprehensive income AQT#HEAEBIEER
for the year attributable to owners EBHERZHWSHEEHE
of the Company 12 (25,190) (83,849)
HK$ HK$
BT & TT
Loss per share BREE
— Basic — EK 16(a) 6.3 cents{l 8.5 centsfll
— Diluted — #F 16(b) N/AT @& N/AT i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B AR &

At 31 March 2018
R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F B+ F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 T TA& T
Non-current assets kREEE
Property, plant and equipment YIs - HER MR 17 64,166 56,361
Current assets mMENEE
Inventories FE 18 4,212 4,965
Trade and retention receivables B 5 I A K EBUR E £ 19 52,000 49,242
Gross amounts due from customers [EUEF & 4 T2 Z I8 4258
for contract work 20 84,103 86,043
Prepayments, deposits and ERNHIE Ze2k
other receivables H A fE Uk 30R 10,320 15,898
Pledged bank deposits EHEBEITER 21 10,138 12,436
Time deposits 7E B 1F K 21 = 7,501
Bank and cash balances R1TRIR € R 21 12,590 12,090
173,363 188,175
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and retention payables B S ENFIEREMNRE S 22 45,088 28,653
Gross amounts due to customers JERTEFE &4 T2 Z I8 4%
for contract work 20 2,225 3,057
Accruals and other payables FEET & R & H b fE T 5018 23 6,930 11,523
Finance lease payables A& M S JE T R 24 26,397 17,626
Bank borrowings |ITERK 25 30,007 26,537
110,647 87,396
Net current assets MEEEEE 62,716 100,779
Total assets less current BEEMRHERE
liabilities 126,882 157,140
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B AR R

At 31 March 2018
P B =

2018 2017
—E—N\f —T—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7 TET F#& T
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Finance lease payables BEMRE R FIE 24 1,868 3,029
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEBE 27 = 3,907
1,868 6,936
NET ASSETS BERHE 125,014 150,204
Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital & 4 28 4,000 4,000
Reserves 15 31 121,014 146,204
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEH 125,014 150,204

rREFER _ZE-\FRA-TNLA#EL
HUATEFKEREE:

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2018 and signed
on its behalf by:

Yu Shiu Tin Paul Yeung Sau Ming Boris
KX B EH
Executive Director Executive Director

BITEF HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARREDE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADEHEEAELL
Share Share Retained Total
capital premium profits equity
A RBEE RKRERN ExZLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
(note 28)  (note 31(b))
(Pt 3E28) (Bt 7E31(0))
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RFEA—H 4,000 84,403 95,650 184,053
Total comprehensive income and FALTHEMNGEREZEIERE
changes in equity for the year = = (33,849) (33,849)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=H=1—H 4,000 84,403 61,801 150,204
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMHA—H 4,000 84,403 61,801 150,204
Total comprehensive income and FREZENERERZ S ETE
changes in equity for the year - - (25,190 (25,190
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=RA=+—H 4,000 84,403 36,611 125,014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBRETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E— 4
Note HK$:00_0 HK$'000
B THEx FTHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETDFEHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax PRt A& 18 (29,097) (34,393)
Adjustments for: HRUATEIBELAE:
Depreciation wE 12 8,305 5,983
Finance costs BEKA 10 1,991 1,309
Impairment loss on gross amounts due  JEWREF A4 T2 38
from customers for contract work BERREEBE 12 = 6,053
Interest income A S A 8 (61) (101)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEMR  BERRED
plant and equipment, net (kz=)/ BEFHE 12 (63) 48
Operating loss before working capital HEEcEBAILE
changes B8 (18,925) (21,101)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/(8M) 753 (8,737)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 FE W IE K JE I
retention receivables RESGEM,BD (2,758) 44,342
Decrease in gross amounts due from B E P& &2 RIE
customers for contract work FEEEDER 1,940 9,223
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRHRIE e R HM
deposits and other receivables W ZRERD
(42 on) 5,578 (5,980)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and 25 RN R IE K e
retention payables RESEMCRD) 16,435 (26,090)
Decrease in gross amounts due to ERRF &4 TITERE
customers for contract work e (832) (910)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FE5T & A K H fth FE
other payables FBECORD),/Em (4,593) 2,260
Cash used in operations REFMAR S (2,402) (1,993)
Income taxes paid EFEH - (6,216)
Interest paid B F A (995) (723)
Finance lease charges paid ENMEEEER (996) (586)
Net cash used in operating activities REEEMAR S FE (4,393) (8,518)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZDFMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BRI & 61 101
Purchases of property, plant and BEME KEkEHE
equipment 33(a) (2,959) (4,455)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - EERZMHE
plant and equipment B8 A 7,133 208
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BERRITERRL
deposits (&) 2,298 (58)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time REHKEREIHEZRH
deposits with original maturity of more =1 A 2 & & 1 7 £
than three months when acquired TRR D/ (38 m) 2,000 (2,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBMSE/(FA)
investing activities HeFR 8,533 (6,204)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n/-.r\ Iﬁzﬁ /)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T
Note HK$’00_0 HK$\'0070
Bt & THEx FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMESRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank borrowings raised EERITEN 33(b) 175,518 58,468
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER 33(b) (172,048) (88,549)
Repayment of finance lease payables EEMEREREMNFKIE 33(b) (12,611) (8,814)
Net cash used in financing activities MEFEMAR S FE (9,141) (38,895)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBEFEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS WL BE (5,001) (53,617)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRERREEEY
beginning of year 17,591 71,208
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year £XE 4 KB L EEY 12,590 17,591
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBeFEYIINT
EQUIVALENTS
Non-pledged time deposits EAEAE RER - 7,501
Less: non-pledged time deposits with B R R B ER
original maturity of more than ZN=(EAA 2 EHR
three months when acquired EHER - (2,000)
Non-pledged time deposits with R 17 B R 2 5 B
original maturity of less than three DR={E A < EHEH
months when acquired EHER - 5,501
Bank and cash balances RITNE B 12,590 12,090
12,590 17,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
A B B R A A

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 23 July 2015 under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is at
P. O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is 10/F, Liven House, 61 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of foundation services
and leasing of machinery in Hong Kong.

With reference to the joint announcement made by the
Company and Blessing Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing Well”)
on 7 May 2018 (the “Joint Announcement”), the Company was
notified by New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”) that
after trading hours on 27 April 2018, Blessing Well (as the
purchaser), New Grace Gain (as the vendor) and its ultimate
beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris, Mr. Yue Suen
Leung and Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert (as the guarantors), entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which New Grace Gain agreed to
sell and Blessing Well agreed to purchase 300,000,000 shares
of the Company, representing 75% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of the Joint Announcement, for
a total cash consideration of HK$596,250,000 (the “Event of
the Change of Substantial Shareholders”). Completion of the
abovementioned transaction took place on 30 April 2018.
Details of which are set out in the Joint Announcement.

As a result of the Event of the Change of Substantial
Shareholders, Blessing Well has become the controlling and
substantial shareholder of the Company since 30 April 2018
while New Grace Gain, Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris, Mr. Yue
Suen Leung and Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert ceased to be the
controlling and substantial shareholders of the Company on
30 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2017. None of these impact
on the accounting policies of the Group. However, the
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:
Disclosure Initiative require disclosure of changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The effect of the amendments on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements has been the inclusion
of additional disclosures in note 33(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

(b)

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2017. These new
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment:
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers: Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures: Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture

Amendments to HKAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of
investment property

Amendments to HKFRSs: Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs: Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Effective for accounting periods
beginning
on or after

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2019
1 January 2021
1 January 2019

To be determined

1 January 2018

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

1 January 2018

1 January 2019

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of the new standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on the information currently
available to the Group, and further impacts may be
identified before the standards are initially applied in
the Group’s interim financial report for the six months
ending 30 September 2018. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in that
interim financial report.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group
plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date and will not restate comparative information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2018 on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at that
date, the directors of the Company have assessed the
impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as follows:

@

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) as follows:

The standard introduces new classification
and measurement requirements for financial
assets on the basis of the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows and that has contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding is measured at
amortised cost. A debt instrument that is held
within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting the contractual
cash flows and selling the instruments and
that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding is measured at FVOCI.
All other debt instruments are measured at
FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

@

®)

()

Classification and measurement (continued)

° Equity instruments are generally measured
at FVPL. However, an entity may make
an irrevocable election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at
FVOCI.

The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances. The
Group expects that the application of the expected
credit loss model will result in earlier recognition of
credit losses. Based on a preliminary assessment,
if the Group were to adopt the new impairment
requirements at 31 March 2018, there would be
no significant impact to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the
requirements relating to measuring and recognising
ineffectiveness under HKAS 39. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The
changes in HKFRS 9 relating to hedge accounting
will have no impact as the Group does not currently
apply hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction Contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018. The standard permits either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for
the adoption. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and
that comparatives will not be restated.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to

be affected:

(@  Timing of revenue recognition
Currently, revenue arising from the provision of
construction contracts is recognised over time.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3
situations in which control of the promised good or
service is regarded as being transferred over time:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)

(@  Timing of revenue recognition (continued)
a) When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

b) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

c) When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to

date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact on
how it recognises revenue from the provision of
construction contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)
(b)  Warranty obligations

The Group generally provides for warranties for
repairs to any construction defects and does not
provide extended warranties in its contracts with
customers. As such, most existing warranties will
be assurance-type warranties under HKFRS 15,
which will continue to be accounted for under
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, and consistent with its current

practice.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or financing

leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply
the modified retrospective approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. The Group’s office properties, staff quarters
and warehouses leases are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under HKFRS 16, the Group may need to recognise
and measure a liability at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments and recognise a corresponding
right-of-use asset for these leases. The interest expense
on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use
asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of
expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
properties, staff quarters and warehouses amounted to
approximately HK$2,913,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$2,645,000). These leases are expected
to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The
amounts will be adjusted for the effects of discounting
and the transition reliefs available to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

3. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out
how to apply that standard when there is uncertainty
about income tax treatments. Entities are required to
determine whether uncertain tax treatments should
be assessed separately or as a group depending on
which approach will better predict the resolution of the
uncertainties. Entities will have to assess whether it is
probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. If yes, the accounting treatment will be
consistent with the entity’s income tax filings. If not,
however, entities are required to account for the effects
of the uncertainty using either the most likely outcome
or expected value method depending on which method
is expected to better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements
until a more detailed assessment has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR R

b N =1

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

Significant Accounting Policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation

(b)

U]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Furniture and equipment 20%
Plant and machinery 7% to 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Leases

The Group as lessee

() Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability. The finance lease charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

088 K. H. Group Holdings Limited | &

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included in contract
revenue to the extent that they have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.
If the variations have not been agreed with customer,
variations will be recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are probable to be recoverable.

Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the
costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion method”
to determine the appropriate amount of revenue in a given
period. When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised on the percentage-of-completion
method, measured by reference to the proportion of
costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs of the
relevant contracts. Revenue from a cost plus construction
contract is recognised on the percentage-of-completion
method, by reference to the recoverable costs incurred
during the period plus the related fee earned, measured
by the proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total costs of the relevant contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are probable to be
recoverable. When it is probable that total contracts costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Construction contracts (continued)
Construction contracts in progress at the end of
the reporting period are recorded at the amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as “Gross
amounts due from customers for contract work”. When
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract work”.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position under
“Trade and retention receivables”. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
“Accruals and other payables”.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

U]

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the financial assets within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivable. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus
any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically
trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances are
classified in this category.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)]

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

() Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

(ii) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(continued)

(iii) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Construction contracts income
Revenue from construction contracts is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the contract
activity as detailed in note 4(f) above.

(ii) Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(iii)

Employee benefits

() Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave is
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(n)

(o)

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and
issues equity-settled share-based payments to eligible
employees (including directors). Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

4, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(o) Borrowing costs (continued)
To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

(p) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for
the year. Taxable profits differ from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profits nor the
accounting profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(q)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is
the case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-
generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have
been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For trade receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amounts are
reduced through the use of an allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amounts are
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if
the amount of the impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through profit or
loss. However, the reversal must not result in a carrying
amount that exceeds what the amortised cost of the
financial asset would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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4,

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(t) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

(u) Dividend distribution

Dividends are recognised as liabilities when they are
declared (i.e. the dividends are appropriately authorised
and no longer at the discretion of the equity). Typically,
dividends are recognised as liabilities in the period in
which their distribution is approved at the shareholders’
annual general meeting. Interim dividends are recognised
when paid.

Critical Judgements and Key Estimates

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made judgements relating to revenue recognition of
construction contracts that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements relating to accounting for variation orders of
construction contracts.

The Group makes claims for additional work performed, which
may arise either under specific circumstances provided for
under the contracts, or due to variations made to the contract
specifications by customers. Where the amounts of such claims
have not been formally agreed at the end of the reporting
period, the amount recoverable as estimated by management
is included in the contract value in determining the estimated
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

5. Critical

Judgements and Key Estimates

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Revenue and profit recognition of construction
contracts

As disclosed in note 4(f) to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue recognition on a construction
contract is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contracts,
as well as the work done to date. The management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and provision for claims,
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations provided
by contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budgets accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the budgets by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
When the final cost incurred by the Group is different
from the amounts initially budgeted, such differences
will impact revenue and the profit or loss recognised
on the contracts. The provision for claims is determined
on the basis of the delay in the number of workdays
of the completion of the construction works which is
highly subjective and is subject to negotiation with the
customers. Management conducts periodic review of the
provision amount.

Significant judgment is required in estimating the contract
revenue, contract costs, variation works and provision
for claims which have an impact on the percentage of
completion of contracts and profit or loss recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

5. Critical

Judgements and Key Estimates

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charges where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2018 was approximately HK$64,166,000
(2017: approximately HK$56,361,000).

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables, gross amounts due from customers for
contract work and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 March 2018, no impairment loss on trade and
other receivables was made (2017: Nil).

As at 31 March 2018, impairment loss of approximately
HK$6,053,000 (2017: approximately HK$6,053,000) was
recognised in gross amounts due from customers for
contract work.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

5. Critical

Judgements and Key Estimates

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Provision for claims on construction works

When accounting for provision for claims on construction
works and other items, the Group has taken internal and
external advice in considering known claims and actions
made by or against the Group. It carefully assesses the
likelihood of success of a claim or action. Appropriate
provisions are made for claims or actions against the
Group on the basis of likely outcome, but no provisions
are made for those which in the view of management are
unlikely to succeed.

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Group has been negotiating the final settlement
amount of a completed contract with a customer. The
customer indicated that it is seeking to deduct from the
final settlement amount the sum of HK$23,450,000 for
liquidated damages arising from delays in completion
of the contract (the “LD”). Up to the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the negotiation with
the customer is still in progress. Significant judgement
was required in determining the possible outcomes of
the negotiation with the customer and whether it is
necessary to recognise any amount in respect of the
LD. The directors are of the opinion that the negotiation
with the customer is still in the initial stage and
based on the opinion of an independent professional
consultant, believe that such LD is unlikely to succeed
and accordingly, the Group has not recognised any
amounts in respect of the LD in the consolidated financial
statements.

In making management’s judgment, the Group assessed
the Group’s liability and obligations under the terms of
subcontracting agreement, supporting evidence of work
done and the basis of charge of related works. Provision
on possible obligations, if appropriate, are made based
on management’s best estimates and judgements. As
at 31 March 2018 and 2017, no provision for claims was
made.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

6. Financial Risk Management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a)

(b)

102 K. H. Group Holdings Limited | &

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities, Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
bank deposits, bank and cash balances, trade and
retention receivables and other receivables. In order to
minimise credit risk, the directors review the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

As at 31 March 2018, there were 3 customers (2017:
3 customers) which individually contributed over 10%
of the Group’s trade and retention receivables. The
aggregate amounts of trade and retention receivables
from these customers amounted to approximately 57%
(2017: approximately 68%) of the Group’s total trade and
retention receivables as at 31 March 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

6.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings and finance lease
payables which contain a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the earliest
period in which the entity can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to
call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other finance lease payables is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. WMEREREREE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REVEREMRE)
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBESRABBEREAORMER
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is as EMEMNINBABRIITWT :
follows:
On Within Between Between
demand 1year 1to2years 2tob5 years Total
BREXR 1ER 1226 2ZE56 @

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fx FiEx Fix FRx Fix

At 31 March 2018 R-E-N\F
=A=+-H

Financial liabilities ZRMEER
subject to a repayment  {EEHFEFRH

on demand clause SRERE
Bank borrowings RITER 30,007 - - = 30,007
Finance lease payables MEBEREN
HIE 25,234 = = = 25,234

Financial liabilities not BAZRREE
subject to a repayment  R{EBHEREH

on demand clause SRERE
Trade and retention BoENTER
payables EMRES = 43,015 2,073 = 45,088
Accruals and other [EEt B AR HA
payables FEf 7 - 6,930 - - 6,930
Finance lease payables MEMERN
Q] = 1,226 1,095 814 3,135
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. WMEREREREE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) REBEEE(E
Within Between Between
On demand 1year 1to2vyears 2to5 years Total
BEX 1R 1225 2R54E F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT FAET AT AT
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—t4F
=A=t-H
Financial liabilities ZRAZRER
subject to a repayment  {EERF KN
on demand clause cHAE
Bank borrowings RITIE X 26,537 - - - 26,537
Finance lease payables  BEFEER
A 16,493 = = = 16,493
Financial liabilities not ~BAZRREE
subject to a repayment  R{EEFHH
on demand clause cHAE
Trade and retention BHENTIER
payables EARES = 27,908 745 - 28,653
Accruals and other B ERREM
payables N IE = 11,523 = = 11,523
Finance lease payables ~ BEFEER
TIE = 1,225 1,225 1,908 4,358

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowings and finance lease payables with
a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts are greater than the amounts disclosed
in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not consider that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings and finance lease payables will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates.
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BHE—

(c)

Z-N\EF=ZA=1t-BILFE

6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MERERERE)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REVEREMRE)
Within Between Between
1year 1to2years 2tob5 years Total
kY 122F 2F5% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THET FTHET
At 31 March 2018 R=B-N\F
=A=+-H
Bank borrowings RITEN 30,100 - - 30,100
Finance lease payables AMERERMTFE 11,336 8,900 6,640 26,876
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—t4
EfETr=E
Bank borrowings RITIE K 26,698 = = 26,698
Finance lease payables BMEMEEMNTE 8,595 4,895 3,734 17,224
Interest rate risk (d) FI==E

(d)

106 K. H. Group Holdings Limited | &

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s finance lease payables
of approximately HK$17,702,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,152,000) bear interests at fixed interest rate and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arises from its bank deposits, trust receipt loans, bank
loans, factoring loans and the remaining finance lease
payables and therefore bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, if interest rates at that
date had been 50 basis points lower or higher with
all other variables held constant, there would be no
significant change to the loss after tax for the year.
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BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MERERERE)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at the end () REFHRHNEMIEEHR
of the reporting period

2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—+4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T TAT
Financial assets: EHMEE:
Loans and receivables (including cash B & fE Wk H (B 1E R
and cash equivalents) T RREEEY) 75,889 80,199
Financial liabilities: tHMAaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost & #k $i5 X 2N 71) BR /9
THERE 110,290 87,368
(f) Fair values f 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REBEHEERSREBENE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated /\Eﬂ%ﬂkﬂi&ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ@fﬁﬁ
statement of financial position approximate their ZERNAFERE
respective fair values.
7. Revenue 7.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: $’§ EolamommT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FAET
Provision of foundation services 12 i H AR 7% 225,579 124,252
Leasing of machinery GiER=R ¥ - 1,337
225,579 125,589
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Other Income

H A Y A

2018 2017

—E—N\E —E—+4F

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET TA&TT

Interest income A B WA 61 101
Rental income on warehouse BENHEES KA = 10
Others H b 76 60
137 171

Segment Information

Operating segment information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance.

The Board considers that the Group manages its businesses
by divisions, which are organised into business units based
on their services provided, and has the reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i) Foundation — provision of foundation services

(i)  Leasing — leasing of machinery

The reportable segments are identified in a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the

Group’s senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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<

: : N\ HE SR MY (43S
Segment Information (continued) 9. NEEHE)
Operating segment information (continued) ESoHERGE)
Foundation Leasing Total
it B HE &t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“EN\FE -—Z+5 ZB-N\F -—ZT—+t5 ZB-N\F -—T—+#F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET THET FHT THER FHT
Reportable segment revenue BATE2HH EkRE 225,579 124,252 = 1,337 225,579 125,589
Reportable segment results BTERDEEE (13,669) (7,658) (882) (220) (14,551) (7,878)
Unallocated corporate income RABEEERA - 10
Central administrative expenses and B R 1T BE 3% & & = 37 B
directors’ remuneration (14,546) (26,525)
Loss before tax B %1 B &S 18 (29,097) (34,393
Reportable segment results include: — BT EZ#HSEEE TR -
Interest income B UA 61 101 = - 61 101
Finance costs A KA 1,946 818 38 118 1,984 936
Depreciation nE 7,552 4,730 753 1,253 8,305 5,983
Additions to property, plant and REWE  ERERBRE
equipment 16,180 16,194 7,000 — 23,180 16,194
Impairment loss on gross amounts due [EWEFE A4 TIEIEA
from customers for contract work BEREER - 6,053 - = - 6,053

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

Segment results represent profit or loss attributable to the
segment without allocation of corporate income, central

administrative expenses and directors’ remuneration.
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HE_ZT - \F=ZA=1+—RHLFE
9. Segment Information (continued) 9. NEEHE)

Segment assets and liabilities STHEERARE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities LATHIIAREIZEEDHE D 2B

by operating segments: EREBEHNDN:

2018 2017
—E2—N\F — 4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TEx FAT
SEGMENT ASSETS SHEEE
Foundation H, EL 226,841 233,083
Leasing HE 10,588 11,000
Total segment assets DEEEAE 237,429 244,083
Unallocated assets ROMEE 100 453
Consolidated assets HEBEE 237,529 244,636
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SEAE
Foundation M B 106,386 91,154
Leasing HE 6,055 2,520
Total segment liabilities HEEABBEAET 112,441 93,674
Unallocated liabilities ROMEE 74 658
Consolidated liabilities meaBE 112,515 94,332

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and BEERESEREARBSEIEREIR:

allocating resources to segment:

()  All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than () BRERPEEEI B ﬁ%i’ﬂ 53
the unallocated assets; and PHREBATERN H:

(i)  All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other (i) KBRBEASEEEESR—BEZE
than those unallocated liabilities which are centrally SEEREI  FIBEABEAHE DA
managed by the Group’s management. EEATERNE -

Seasonality of operations FHMEN=EE

The Group’s operations are not subject to significant seasonal AEBNEETSZHNEAETHER

=5

o

factors. E-g- %
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

9. Segment Information (continued) 9. NEEHE)
Geographical information HWEE R

R_B-NFR-B—tF=A=1+—
BB ERDEENARBE-F—
NEFERZZB—tF=A=+—HILFE
AEBERBINEDFF oYz B i I
REE® °

All non-current assets as at 31 March 2018 and 2017 and
the Group’s revenue from external customers during the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are located in and generated
from Hong Kong.

Revenue from major customers FEERKS

The Group’s customer base for whom transactions have BE_Z—\FRZFT—+tF=HA=+
exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years ended 31 March —HIEFE - BERRFGHAREE10% A
2018 and 2017 is set out as below: FRERNEFBEHIIT

2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—+4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FH T
Foundation B
Customer 1 =P 96,809 N/A 78 3~
Customer 2 =E2 28,914 N/A 78 3~
Customer 3 =FE3 23,008 37,057
Customer 4 R4 N/AA & B+ 22,143
Customer 5 ®FE5 N/AT & R~ 21,174
o Amount represented less than 10% of the revenue during the year. &R FE R RS D I10% °
10. Finance Costs B & A AN
2018 2017
—E—_N\E —E—+4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT TH T
Finance lease charges BMEHEER 996 586
Interest on bank borrowings |ITE KT E 995 723
1,991 1,309
Less: Amount attributable to contract WA IREELEE
work (561) (873)
1,430 936
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

11. Income Tax Credit 1. IEREE

2018 2017

—ZE—N\F —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T F#& T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERREIE — EBEMNFH

Provision for the year FRE A - —

Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE - 1,259

- 1,259

Deferred tax (note 27) i FE 18 (P 5E27) 3,907 (715)

3,907 544
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the HRAEBEEZE-_Z—N\F=ZH=7
Group has no assessable profits for the year ended 31 March —H tﬁfiﬁﬁ%%ﬂ D] I 72
2018 (2017: Nil). RBEBANEHRER(CET—LF:

&) -

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

ﬁfr Tt 1 %0 B8 B 7% A &5 1R R AR B A

BRBEAERBENHEERNOT

2018 2017

—E—N\f —tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx T T

Loss before tax B i AT RS 48 (29,097) (34,393)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1%16.5%H)%& 7 F 15 %t %t &

16.5% T E KRR (4,801) (5,675)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable HBEZFHRBRANRIETE - (1)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AT B S M R TS R 2

deductible 517 255
Tax effect of temporary differences not  AREREREZEAREZE

recognised (310) (676)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7k #& 32 %% 18 &5 18 1 % 7%

- 687 6,812
Over-provision in prior years BAEFERBEREG - (1,259)
Income tax credit Fr i3 13K % (3,907) (544)
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BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

12. Loss for the Year 12. FAEE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AREBNFRNEBEENR,GIA)T
the following: 5 %18 :
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—+tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 - T
Auditor’s remuneration A% BURD 7 B 638 600
Costs of construction materials BEM B KA (@) 83,270 11,636
Depreciation e (b) 8,305 5,983
Impairment loss on gross amounts EUWREFE A # TIE KA
due from customers for contract BEHREER
work (@) - 6,053
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEY ¥ - #eE K & E
plant and equipment, net B (w=) BEFE (0 (63) 48
Operating lease charges CERERAS @)
— Hire of plant and equipment — THA#E R 5,290 4,990
— Land and buildings — LT REF 3,724 2,813

Notes: B 5% -

(@) The amounts included in cost of sales. (@) ZEEEAAHEEKAE -

(b) The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March (b) ZEBEABTFABE_TE—\FER=_F—
2018 and 2017 amounted to approximately HK$3,202,000 and tE=A=+—HILFEMNHEEKRS 5
approximately HK$1,640,000 respectively. 711 £93,202,0007% 7T & 491,640,000/ 7T °

(© The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March (© ZEBEABAREZE T \ER_T—
2018 and 2017 amounted to net gain of approximately HK$33,000 and +E=A=1+—"BHItFENHEERK o
net loss of approximately HK$42,000 respectively. Bl A Uk %5 7% 58 #933,00058 7T R B I8 R 5B

#942,0007% 7t °

()} The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March @) ZEBEABTFABE=_T—\FER=_F—
2018 and 2017 amounted to approximately HK$6,782,000 and tF=ZA=+—BHLEFENHEHEXE
approximately HK$6,107,000 respectively. 7l #76,782,0007% 7t &% #16,107,0007%8 7T °
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HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

13. Employee Benefits Expense 18. EERAMAX
2018 2017
—ZE—N\F T+
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & T#ET FAT
Employee benefits expense EERMNAZ(BEE
(including directors’ emoluments): = &) :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances  #& - fEAL & J28L 45,341 49,947
Retirement benefits scheme R ONAE T 5T S48 3K
contributions (@) 1,503 1,435
(b) 46,844 51,382

Notes:
(a) Retirement benefits scheme contributions:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

(b) The amounts included in cost of sales for the years ended 31 March

2018 and 2017 amounted to approximately HK$32,785,000 and
approximately HK$28,811,000 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

13. Employee Benefits Expense (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year included
2 (2017: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2017: 3)
individuals are set out below:

13. BERHNFHX (&)

MsE: (4
(©) A &S FH AL

FAREENAUESHFHMALTEE
2% (ZE—LF :28)EF  HMEER
BRERFEI4NDMA - HTIHR(ZF—+
FiBRI)ALTHMEHINMT :

2018 2017

—2-N\F —T—+tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Basic salaries and allowances EXE e REN 3,458 3,379
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R AE F 5T B4 5K 54 54
3,512 3,433

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BRTIEENME :

2018 2017

=—2-N\F —T—+tF

Number of person Number of person

Band of emoluments (HK$) B <& 65 & (45 7T) A AEL
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 JT £1,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 3 2
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14. Benefits and Interests of Directors 14, EFRMN R#ER
(a) Directors’ emoluments: (a) EEM=2:
The emoluments of every director are set out below: FEREFSHNSHIN AT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REBES(TRALILENBLATER) 2AAREEAIER2HE

Estimated Retirement

Performance  money value benefits
related of other scheme Housing
Fees Salaries bonuses benefits  contributions allowance Total
Hit @Rz BRAKENGGE
e e E-3 RN GeREE BR  GERE @it
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tign Ti#gn TiEx Tign TiEx Tign Tign
(note i)
(B Ei)
Executive directors: YTES:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul (Chairman) ~ #B K EE(ZE) - 1,500 - - - - 1,500
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris BEBRLE - 340 - - 7 860 1,207
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen REELXT = 480 = 19 18 = 517
Independent non-executive BIFBTEES:
directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen Michael B e %% 150 - - - - - 150
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee BRERE 150 - - - - - 150
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank REBLE 150 - = = - - 150
Professor Chung Hung Kwan BRBHK
Barnabas 150 - - - - - 150
Total for 2018 —E-NF4H 600 2,320 = 19 25 860 3,824
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REVBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments: (continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

14, EEEM R
(a ESBEM£: (&)

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
RAREZ(THRARAIEMBRAXE) 2AARBERRER 2B E

==
&)

Retirement
Performance Estimated benefits
related  money value of scheme Housing
Fees Salaries bonuses  other benefits contributions  allowance Total
R zfE  RKERNE
e e REL deEEE 7 EEEY Fobs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET FAT THET FAT THT THT
(note )
(CiE)
Executive directors: YTES:
Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul (Chairman) REBREE(ZE) = 1,500 - - - - 1,500
Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris BEBRLE = 1,200 = = 18 = 1,218
Ms. Chan Lai Kuen REELXT = 480 = 19 18 = 517
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen Michael R EE 150 = = = = = 150
Mr. Cheng Yan Kee BRERE 150 = = = = = 150
Mr. Cheung Chi Fai Frank REBEE 150 = = = = = 150
Professor Chung Hung Kwan BRBHK
Barnabas 150 - - - - - 150
Total for 2017 R+ ERE 600 3,180 = 19 36 = 3,835
Note: B 5 -
0] Estimated money value of other benefits include cash (i) Hih@AzHiteBEERER

allowances.

No share options or any other forms of share-based
payments were granted to the directors during the year

(2017: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year

(2017: Nil).

EERh -

P9+ 3 T AR MR
EMEM RO RE

—LFE)

TR TEEFRELRATHR
ERHFMOLE (T L5

&) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

14. Benefits and Interests of Directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in the directors’ report and
“Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

15. Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

16. Loss Per Share 16. G E1E
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BEREXERE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on ERERBEDZNATH A G
the following: g

2018 2017

—E2—N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Ti#ET T T

Loss for the purpose of calculating — sTESRELREIE 2 EE

basic loss per share (25,190) (33,849)
2018 2017
—E—_N\E —E—+4F
’000 000
T B8 T &%
Number of shares [igvig (g=|

Weighted average number of ordinary =tE &R EAREE 2
shares for the purpose of calculating % #8 A% Hn# £ 15 8

basic loss per share 400,000 400,000
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) SREBHEER
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company HRARAEBEE_ZE—N\FKk=
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during E—+tF=ZA=+—BIFEL
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. BAEMBEEEEEKR  RIE

2 EBREEEHE -
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. W% - #EE N EHE
Furniture and Plant and Motor
equipment machinery vehicles Total
BRARR HEREE RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FTHT THT THEL
Cost KA
At 1 April 2016 RZE—REMNA—A 931 57,359 870 59,160
Additions NE 1,104 13,351 1,739 16,194
Disposals/write off HE /s (36) (263) (1) (340)

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H

FZFE—+FMNA—-H 1,999 70,447 2,568 75,014
Additions NE 229 20,671 2,280 23,180
Disposals HE - (7,114) (176) (7,290)
At 31 March 2018 R-E—/\E=PB=1+—H 2,228 84,004 4,672 90,904
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
At 1 April 2016 RZE— A EFMA—H 321 12,010 423 12,754
Charge for the year FAXH 283 4,999 701 5,983
Disposals/write off HE /8 @ (62) (28) (84)

At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZE—t$=R=+—H

RZT—+&5MA—H 600 16,957 1,096 18,653

Charge for the year FRZH 393 6,695 1,217 8,305

Disposals & = (61) (159) (220)

At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=+—H 993 23,591 2,154 26,738

Carrying amount REE

At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1+—H 1,235 60,413 2,518 64,166

At 31 March 2017 RZZ—t$=A=1+—H 1,399 53,490 1472 56,361
As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of property, R-_ZE—NE=ZFA=+—H A&EH
plant and equipment held by the Group under finance DRt EHESAENYE  HELEHE
leases amounted to approximately HK$53,312,000 (2017: Y BR [ {8 £953,312,0008 T (=& — +
approximately HK$41,851,000). £ : 941,851,000/ 7T) °
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. Inventories 18. 7 &
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F# T
Construction materials EEM K 4,212 4,965
19. Trade and Retention Receivables 10. B 5 WA K EWIRE £
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+ F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt & FEx F# T
Trade receivables B 5 MWK IA (@) 14,314 11,253
Retention receivables FEWIR E & (o) 37,686 37,989
© 52,000 49,242

Notes:

The Group’s trade receivables represent progress billings receivables

from contract customers. The general credit terms of trade receivables
were within 14 days to 45 days. Application for progress payment of
contract works is made on a regular basis. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by directors.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the

B AE

@) AEENEFIRBRBECHNEFNE
WEER - EHERRENEAEESE
R14BZEASAN - EHTIREEMNKIIE
BRER S o N5 B B H R [E 50IE 4 45 B
BEE - EEE BRI B AR -

AT R A& B H) B 5 18 W R 08 A A

progress payment, is as follows: RAEEENRE DT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#& T
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 14,314 6,664
31 to 60 days 31H £60H - 1,356
Over 60 days 60H A E - 3,233
14,314 11,253
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19. Trade and Retention Receivables (continued)

(@)

19.

/!

B 5 RUWKIA N R IRE €

7 ==
(&)
Notes: (continued) B s : (48)
(continued) (@) (%)
As at 31 March 2018, none of the Group’s trade receivables (2017: R-E—N\EF=A=+-—HB AEEIE
approximately HK$4,589,000) was past due but not impaired. These BEafEMRRENESERKEB(CS
related to a number of independent customers for whom there were no — 4+ 4F : 494,689,000/ TT) - X EEHE
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables WK IR & % 4 30 BA NG 4 36 R B2 8 9 98
is as follows: NEF R EEZEWFIBENERE DT
W
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET T T
Less than 3 months D318 A - 1,356
3 to 6 months 3ZE6fE A - —
Over 6 months ZR6fE A = 3,233
- 4,589
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated AEBEESERFENERREDRST
in Hong Kong dollars. FTE -
The Group’s retention receivables represent certified contract payments (b) AEERNERKRESERDETIEMR

in respect of works performed, for which payments are withheld by
customers for retention purposes, and the amount retained is withheld
on each payment up to a maximum amount calculated as a prescribed
percentage of the contract sum. The retention receivables should be
released to the Group pursuant to the provisions of the relevant contracts
after the completion of the projects (i.e. 12 months after the completion
of the contracts).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s retention receivables of approximately
HK$24,357,000 (2017: approximately HK$5,077,000) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there are no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these
retention receivables is as follows:

SNMEREIRMNN  FFHRNERE
MR 8RN RE BN RIE - BN R
BERRBARSENEEANLAE -
REEBARGR  BRRESERE
Bk (BIAKEMIEI2EAR) ZETA
EEI

R=ZZE—N\F=A=+—H0 A&EEE@E
HR{B 18 AR R (B /) B IR [E & £924,357,000
BIL(ZZ—+1F : £5,077,000/87T) ° &
ERKRES PR ZROCHIT EHRT
BHBYRE c #ERKIRE SRR
DHTEAR ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET T T

Up to 3 months 3fE A AR 850 2,071
3 to 6 months 3Z6fE A 66 =
Over 6 months 61E A M £ 23,441 3,006
24,357 5,077
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

19. Trade and Retention Receivables (continued) 19. B 5 WA & B IRE €
(&)

Notes: (continued) B s : (48)

(b) (continued) (o) (%)

As at 31 March 2018, the amount of the Group’s retention receivables R-B-—NEF=A=+—8" BHER

expected to be recovered after more than twelve months was w+ = A B E A S E ERRES

approximately HK$5,425,000 (2017: approximately HK$2,538,000). & %8 #95,425,0008 L (ZF — £ F: 4
2,538,000/ JT) °

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention receivables are AN B MR E & R BREE Ty iR B Tt

denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B -

(©) As part of its normal business, the Group entered into a factoring (©) ERBEEBN—Hy  AEEFIL—E
arrangement and transferred certain trade and retention receivables REBZY  BEETESREREFHIERE
to a bank. If these receivables are not paid at maturity, the bank has KRECERT —RET - MEKZEK
the right to request the Group to pay the unsettled balances. As the RIEIW AR LM - AISRITEEEER
Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to AEBXNARSEELE S - ARAEEN
these receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying amounts EEREZEREREABNE RRAR
of the receivables. Cash received from the bank are recognised as ke HEBEAULSEKRKENZ
factoring loans and are disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial HEREME - BIRITWRANIR S ERBR
statements. BERERBEBERGE M REM 25 -
As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of the trade and retention RZE-N\F=ZA=+—H BHEEH
receivables that have been transferred but have not been derecognised REIEFERNE S E W FE K ERIRE
amounted to approximately HK$16,992,000 (2017: approximately % ) BR T 18 4916,992,0008 T (=T — &
HK$2,533,000). The carrying amount of the factoring loans financed as F : £)2,633,0008 L) c RZZE—\F=
at 31 March 2018 is approximately HK$8,019,000 (2017: Nil). A=+—H ER0NREEXNERE

#)8,019,0008 T (ZF— L F : &) -
20. Gross Amounts due from/(to) Customers for  20. J& Hﬁl/(f&? MEFPEHIIE

Contract Work KIE MR

2018 2017
=¥ Wy —e_i g
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised & ZZHIEELERNEL
profits less recognised losses to date B 7R N B B 3R 8 AR
R E R 910,785 795,191
Less: Progress billings R S (828,907) (712,205)
81,878 82,986
Gross amounts due from customers EREFEHNTIERIEETE
for contract work (note) (FF5E) 84,103 86,043
Gross amounts due to customers EREPEHIERIBERE
for contract work (2,225) (3,057)
81,878 82,986
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

BHE—

Z-N\EF=ZA=1t-BILFE

20. Gross Amounts due from/(to) Customers for
Contract Work (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has been negotiating
the final settlement amount of a completed contract with a customer. The
customer indicated that it is seeking to deduct from the final settlement
amount the sum of HK$23,450,000 for the LD. Up to the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the negotiations with the customer
are still in progress.

The directors are of the opinion that the negotiations with the customer
are still in the initial stage and based on the opinion of an independent
professional consultant, believe that such LD is unlikely to succeed and
accordingly, the Group has not recognised any amounts in respect of
the LD in the consolidated financial statements.

21. Pledged Bank Deposits/Time Deposits/Bank
and Cash Balances

The Group’s pledged bank deposits

represent deposits

pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pledged bank deposits, time deposits and bank and cash
balances are denominated in the following currencies:

20.

21.

==
=

rﬂ /(JT&*“ DNEPEHILE
N %( )

MTE — T \E=A=+—HLEFE " XK

SE— E;ﬁ% ERFHER—BEEEXEH

E’Jr%%%:éi RIE o BERREMBRENS
> S 15 8% 4R 4 B 5K 18 23,450,000/ T ©

étizw EHBREAY  BEEFHER

MEETH -

EERR Eﬁ%?ﬂﬁ%?ﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁ&ﬂ%&
ARBBYEXRHENER  EFR
BREDESTRAERRKL - Bt K
SEIENEEUBRRTBEED SR
RIEMDHE °

EEBRTERTEHE
TA/%ETT&EEiNDﬁ%

AEBENEERRITFHIEER TR
THER MMERAEEERRITRE
B EM (FN ARG RS IR FE25)

EEMRITER  EREFERARRT
REeHEBRIATEREGE:

2018 2017

—E-)N\F —tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TE&x F#& T

Hong Kong dollars 7T 22,664 31,963
Renminbi AR 64 64
22,728 32,027
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

22. Trade and Retention Payables

22. B EMNARIELEMNRE SR

2018 2017
—e-\F  -—z-+%
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% TExT FAT
Trade payables B 5 EN R (@) 33,498 17,878
Retention payables ERRES (o) 11,590 10,775
45,088 28,653
Notes: Pt & -
(@) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the date (@) AT & A& B E% & SRR AR
of receipt of goods/services, is as follows: ¥,/ IR B HI A B E R ERER D
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 16,602 9,990
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 9,469 2,350
61 to 90 days 613 Z90H 538 456
Over 90 days 90H A £ 6,889 5,082
33,498 17,878
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated AEEZSEMNRENKREEDZRE T
in Hong Kong dollars. sH{E -
(b) As at 31 March 2018, the amount of the Group’s retention payables (o) R=ZZT—N\F=A=+—H ' Bst#R&E

expected to be due after more than twelve months was approximately
HK$2,073,000 (2017: approximately HK$745,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention payables are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

ToEARIBOARERNRES S H
#92,078,000/& 7T (= F — 4 : #9745,000
BT

7N 5 B FE AR (B & 89 BR (B T0 3R0B TTAT
=
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

23. Accruals and Other Payables 23. FEETE A K EM E A
2018 2017
—ZE2—N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Accruals EEtE A 6,665 11,343
Other payables H b JE S 5 IE 265 180
6,930 11,523
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other AEBE R ER B A K& At FE IR K
payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FREEDIZBITEE °
24. Finance Lease Payables 24, FUEME BN IA

In the consolidated statement of financial position, obligations
under finance leases due for repayment after one year which
contain repayment on demand clause were classified as
current liabilities. The maturity of obligations under finance

leases is as follows:

REGHMBMRNE  HERERKEE
FRREAR —FRIMEENRER
ERTEERSIEARDAGE - BE
HEBETEENIHBERMNT :

Minimum lease payments

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BREHERR RERENRNRAE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“®—\f -3tz ZE—\F -3-(&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEx TET TEx TET
Within one year —&R 12,562 9,821 11,535 9,300
In the second to fifth years, F_ERF
inclusive (BREEEME) 17,449 11,762 16,730 11,355
30,011 21,583 28!265 20,655
Less: Future finance charges BAXREER (1,746) (928) N/AT i N/A 8
Present value of lease obligations 7 & & T &I (& 28,265 20,655 28,265 20,655
Less: Amount due for settlement i : 22 1218 B R 2| 2 &
within 12 months (shown MR (RRE afEE
under current liabilities) T3IR) (26,397) (17,626)
Amount due for settlement BR12(E A% BB ER
after 12 months Q] 1,868 3,029
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

24.

Finance Lease Payables (continued)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant
and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term
is 4 years (2017: 4 years). As at 31 March 2018, the average
effective borrowing rate was approximately 3.75% (2017:
approximately 3.24%). As at 31 March 2018, finance lease
payables of approximately HK$17,702,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,152,000) bear fixed interest rate at the inception of the
lease and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The remaining finance lease payables are arranged at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. All
leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. At the
end of each lease term, the Group has the option to purchase
the property, plant and equipment at a nominal price.

None of the portion of finance lease payables due for
repayment after one year which contains a repayment on
demand clause and that is classified as a current liability is
expected to be settled within one year.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

In addition, most of the Group’s finance lease payables are
secured by corporate guarantee executed by the Company.

24.

BEHE RN RIE(E)
LEERERRE TYWE  #ER
HEAAEERNBEK - FHHEE R4
F(CE—LF 4F)  RZT—N\F
ZA=+—H8 FHEBRERELY
3.75% (ZF —t F : 493.24%) - R =
T-N\F=ZA=+—8 mEHEEN
FKIBX17,702,0008 T (ZE—+F : 4
1,152,000/87T) * LA EFT Z KHE
EHEFE EmSAEEmEATF
BERERR S TREHEEEMNRIE
BEPMNEGE  SAKEEBRRS
mEMNERR - FEHEREEEE
B ML B RARB SR LE
e REMEBERR  AEET
BEENZXERBEYE  BSIEF
f& o

HERBREEGRREAR —FREH

BEANEARDABHBRERERE
NHRBRBERBEAR—FRFE-

AR EMRERNREBABTHE °

g REBE KRB O EHEE R
RIBEHAARBRY Z NAIEREM -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T—\F=A=1+—HILFE

25. Bank Borrowings 25. IRITER
2018 2017
—ZE2—N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Bank loans RITE 10,000 10,000
Trust receipt loans FErElEE R 11,988 16,537
Factoring loans REER 8,019 —
30,007 26,537
The bank borrowings of the Group are repayable on demand AEBZHRITEBREREREE I
and denominated in Hong Kong dollars. LAVETTET{E ©
The average interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group R¥mEHRR - AEBRITERE FH
at the end of the reporting period were as follows: AELE
2018 2017
—E—_N\E —E—+4F
Bank loans RITE X 3.68% 3.20%
Trust receipt loans ERBEBEER 4.16% 3.73%
Factoring loans REER 3.13% N/AA &
All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates and expose FERTERGRFHHEGFE 2
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. AEBEHRBESRERNERER
The security of the Group’s bank borrowings are disclosed in REBRITERNDERRERGEE Y
note 26(a) to the consolidated financial statements. 7% R & MY £ 26(a) # B& o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_T-\F=A=+—HILEFE

26. Credit Facilities

@)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s credit facilities are
secured by:

(i) The Group’s trade and retention receivables of
approximately HK$16,992,000 (2017: approximately
HK$2,533,000);

(i)  The Group’s pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$10,138,000 (2017: approximately
HK$12,436,000);

(i)  The Group’s property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$53,312,000 (2017: approximately
HK$41,851,000); and

(iv)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company.

Except for finance lease payables amounted to
approximately HK$3,031,000 (2017: approximately
HK$4,162,000), the Group’s bank borrowings and finance
lease payables contain clauses which give the lenders
the right at their sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group
has complied with the covenants and met the scheduled
repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with loan
covenants. Its repayments up to date are in accordance
with the scheduled repayments of the term loans. The
Group does not consider that the banks will probably
exercise their discretions to demand repayments so long
as the Group continues to meet these requirements.
Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 6(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

26. EE®ME

@

RZZE-N\F=ZA=t—HB K
SENEEREAATEBER
SR

() AEBZEZERZER
& AR [E £ 416,992,000
B E — £ F: 4
2,533,000/ 7T) :

iy AXEEZEEHRRITHE
X #910,138,000/8 L (= =
— & F: %12,436,000/8
JL)

iy AEE2WZH - #BE KK
#5 4953,312,0005 T (=&
— £ F: #41,851,000/%8
TT) i &

(iv) ARBRILZRAFER -

& A& 21 493,031,000/ T (ZF —
+ £ : 494,162,000 7T) gt &
ERMAFRIBIN  AEBIEITHER
Rep &S ENFIES A WS E
KT AEBREEETRA

ELEEBRTEENERER -
ZEERGETERAZER
175 B B B SR AN £ [ B B 58 TR 9 4
F o

AEEEHNERERLECAETE
R - HBEERRMER IR
EHRERNEREERET o K
SEVYRARRAEARAEBEETS
ZEBRE - ARITKRRIBETTE
HERERNRIEE - ALK
BREE TR R ERNE—HF
B AR B B 75 R M 5E6(c)
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HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

26. Credit Facilities (continued) EEHR i\ )

(b) As at 31 March 2018, the Group had other facilities from by RZZE—N\F=A=+—H &
an insurance company for the issuance of performance m@E RIRbR AT ES H Mgl
bonds in its ordinary course of business. Certain of these 7 TJEZIKE Ef=] %%ﬂ‘%‘?}mf
performance bonds are secured by: HIRFESL - BETRLIRR %EEL/(

Tﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
()  The Group’s other receivables of approximately i) AEER=ZZF—tF=H
HK$128,000 as at 31 March 2017 while no such =+—HZEfhEWKRKRIE
amount as at 31 March 2018; and #9£128,000/8 7T * MR =
- N\F=A=+—RHAIE
EREIRIE : &
(i)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company. (i) ARAEILZAAER -
27. Deferred Tax AR & T 18
The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised AEBEERRNELERIBEEEREE
by the Group. IR o
Losses
available for
offsetting
Accelerated tax against future
depreciation taxable profits Total
] 44 4 85
RIRERH
MEHREBERE s R By &S 18 &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
At 1 April 2016 RZE—AR"FMNA—H 3,192 — 3,192
Charge for the year (note 11) F A E (B EE11) 715 = 715
At 31 March 2017 and RZFE—tF=A=+—H
1 April 2017 E_ZT—tFMmMA—H 3,907 = 3,907
Charge/(credit) for the year FRZH (%) 5E11)
(note 11) 2,445 (6,352) (8,907)
At 31 March 2018 R=ZZE—N\E=ZA=+—H 6,352 (6,352) —

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$80,513,000 (2017: approximately
HK$50,253,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$38,495,000 (2017: Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
unused tax losses of HK$42,018,000 (2017: Nil) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE-_T—\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

28. Share Capital 28. B
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAT
Authorised: VAR
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 0% & i% [ (&
HK$0.01 each 0.01B Tz EmkK 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRETE:
400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 400,000,000 & i% E &
each 0.01B Tz LB 4,000 4,000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio,
which is the total borrowings divided by the total equity of the
Group. The total borrowings include finance lease payables and
bank borrowings.

AEBERASNEIEARBAEE
S QB ETEN RE BB E
REARTERTELARAEHEESD
% -

AEEEREREAXNARBAEEE
AERABE R R B SR E RS
AEEAEBRMNEE - BITHER
B EEIAREITHES  BRRA
BRI EEENRDBENTAF
MEBRBEARE -

AEERBEEABLRERELN
EERBLUIRBASENBREER
DHEDERE - EXERERERENRE
&R IR S RIT K -
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28. Share Capital (continued) 28. RA(4B)
The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting period were as R EHMRNEEQBLENOT :
follows:
2018 2017
—E—N&E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T4 7T
Bank borrowings SRAT &K 30,007 26,537
Finance lease payables B & & T R 28,265 20,655
Total debts BET 58,272 47,192
Total equity T AR 125,014 150,204
2018 2017
—E—)N\F —E—+F
Gearing ratio BEARLX 46.6% 31.4%
The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are AEBEZEZRNIATINREREE :
mainly: (i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange, WEAREREEZRLAREETRG
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the total number MREH25% - AR E R B FT A |
of the shares in issue; and (ii) to meet financial covenants AL+ K2 (i) 2 2R 1T 18 5K A BT /9 B 75
attached to the bank borrowings. R o
The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly AEBESREERGBAFELEZEN
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float BETREAZFHRENE RGO ER D
which demonstrates that the Group is continuing in compliance WG ZMEETAEEREEFE
with the 25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 March 2018, N—HEET25%MRE - RZTE—N\F
25% (2017: 25%) of the total number of shares in issue were A=+ R ARFEREREET
in public hands. IR0 #E B E25% (Z T — 4 : 25%) °
Breaches to fulfill the financial covenants would permit the bank REBITU R - R178 # 7 8f
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches EWER BEZE-\FR_E—+
in the financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years FZA=Z+—HLEFE WEEXE
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017. AIERIT B R A I 2 5 o
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29. Share-Based Payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time or part-
time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
other contractors, business partners of the Company or any
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 19 February
2016 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the Listing Date and any shares of the
Company which may be alloted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the offer size adjustment option. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any twelve months period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

29.

B 15 3K

YN SVl -3 g i (I
g BEARAKERERNELE
BHaERSEERH‘EERMORK -
BERSEERBARAXAKET
KB ARIMNEREGREES - 27X
NAIFERM B RN ERAT - 3F
HTEFRBULFATES  BH -
FREED - EMETAOA - EBAERHE -
ZABER_E-R"F_ATNABRLE
M FRIEE R TTRIHER] - BRI
B ARG TFAKEBR -

RBZ A EIREF AR 2 RITE B
B2RESBFERITESHEFRALQE
REMARZEBHTEMNRARAIR
ERESHEEAELEEREITZA
REMEMAR210% - RER+=1EA
HEA REZFEARTEAERSZ
BEZBEEATETZERBEMNHK
BUARRBHERIKIREZTRMD 21%
RR e HHBBE U RG] 2 E A EAME
BREFNRRRNE BB RILE -

Annual Report 2017/18 | 3 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-Z-N\F=A=+—HILEE

29. Bin R ()

29. Share-Based Payments (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve months period
up to and including the date of the grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the offer date, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since
adoption of the Scheme.
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30. Statement of Financial Position and Reserve  30. ZNA & B & ik L &k & (& &
Movement of the Company )
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) ALTHBRRAR
Company

At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
RZZ-N\E RZE—+F

=A=+-8 ZA=+-8
Note HK$000 HK$'000
(i TET TET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHBARKEE - -
Due from a subsidiary EU—RKBARFRE 88,119 88,119
88,119 88,119
Current assets RBEE
Due from a subsidiary el — %W% Al IE 22 -
Bank and cash balances BIIRR e EH 7 197
29 197
Current liabilities nBEaE
Due to a subsidiary ER—RRBARNE = =
Net current assets RBEEEE 29 197
Total assets less current liabilities BEEARDERE 88,148 88,316
NET ASSETS BERE 88,148 88,316
Capital and reserves BEXRRGRE
Share capital I 28 4,000 4,000
Reserves 1 30(b) 84,148 84,316
TOTAL EQUITY RxaE 88,148 88,316
* Represents the amount less than HK$1,000. * 5 € % 21,0008 7T °
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2018 REFESNR-T—\EXA —1—)‘1
and signed on its behalf by: BT HNTESAXES
Yu Shiu Tin Paul Yeung Sau Ming Boris
REX B FEH
Executive Director Execut/vg Director
HITEE HITEF
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30. Statement of Financial Positon and Reserve  30. ZANA & B #& ik 0 & N 6 6 &
Movement of the Company (continued) &) (4

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ARATEEEE

Bt

il

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total equity
I3 E RitEE EReE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT FAETT
(note 31(b))
(BT 5E31(0))
At 1 April 2016 R-E—XEmA—R 84,403 (24) 84,379
Total comprehensive income and FAZEME K
changes in equity for the year BEEEEE - (63) (63)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=H
=E=10 84,403 (87) 84,316
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FWHA—H 84,403 (87) 84,316
Total comprehensive income and FNE2EKER
changes in equity for the year Ba2BERE — (168) (168)
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-/\$=A
=+—Ag 84,403 (255) 84,148
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31. Reserves
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

(b)

therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
67 and 70 of the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and after deduction of capitalisation issue and
issuance costs of shares.

(b)

AEE
AEEFREBEREZEHHRIN

A0 5 M E E6TRIOR MRS
1824 B R ER R E ARG S
HAEBEL2S -

B 14 i 18
RERAEFERFE - ARARK
HEERNESAHRIIRTAR

AIRR - EREEEZE DR ER

Hg  ARRIZBBRENEEER

HEXRBERETEIHNER -

i ERASR RN EE
MEBRETROAELENDE -
I B REMBRE AT B fn 3
TTRCA
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32. Subsidiaries 32. B R A]
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 are as N-—ZE—N\E=RA=1+—HHMHEBAR
follows: RN
Place of
incorporation/ Date of Percentage of ownership

establishment and incorporation/ Issued and interest/voting power/
Name operation establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activity
WAL R BRTR  HEER REE/
£ REBEHE MR/ RE S BREX MMERREALE  FERRH
Direct Indirect
E# i &
K. H. Development British Virgin Islands 13 August 2015 US$100 100% — Investment holding
Holdings Limited AERAHES “E-RFEN\A+=H 100% T RERR
K. H. Civil Engineering ~ Hong Kong 5 March 2001 HK$100 - 100% Provision of foundation
Limited services
FIMTATRERAR FA —ZZ-F£=H1A 100/ 7T R A B R
K. H. Foundations Limited Hong Kong 4 January 1985 HK$22,962,000 - 100% Provision of foundation
services
F s ERRAT BB —ANRE—AMEB 22,962,000% T R A E RS
K. H. Holdings Limited  Hong Kong 15 September 2006 HKS1 - 100% Investment holding
B ERER R BB “ZERFAATRA 1B REER
K. H. Machinery Limited Hong Kong 23 January 2007 HK$3,000 - 100% Leasing of machinery
Rl HHRBERAR BB “2RLF-A-t=A 3,000/ 7T HRES
K. H. Piling & Engineering Hong Kong 8 November 2012 HK$100 - 100% Inactive
Limited
FIMTEIRBRAA FA —Z-—E+-ANA 10078 7T ETRERH
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33. Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transaction

Additions of property, plant and equipment for the
year ended 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$20,221,000 (2017: approximately HK$11,739,000)
were financed by finance leases.

Reconciliation of
financing activities
The table below shows details of the changes in
the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash

liabilities arising from

33.

4T A

N

(a)

(b)

HenasxMT

EXIBEEXRS
HE_Z—N\F=A=+—H1
F[E - £%420,221,00078 7T (=
;?—t$:%117390005%7_c>ﬁ’9
W - e REREANEBRBEMR
ERNES -

METHRELAENHE

TRINRAKERERSAESE
ET,\E’J“EJJ%?L’\% - BREBEE NI

e o  MERDAELERE
B?Eﬁfﬁﬁ}mé‘iiﬁ%iﬁﬁiﬁ

flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the ENAEFGRERERERTD
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash HARMERYMRHRESRENE
flows from financing activities. f& -
Finance lease Bank
payables  borrowings Total
MEMRE
FEfF 8 RITEX @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET AT AT
(note 24) (note 25)
(GEZ) (Ff £25)
As at 1 April 2017 R=F-t¥MA—H 20,655 26,537 47,192
Changes from financing cash flows: REMERERE2EH:
Bank borrowings raised EERTER = 175,518 175,518
Repayment of bank borrowings BEREITER = (172,048) (172,048)
Repayment of finance lease payables BEREHEEMNTE (12,611) = (12,611)
Other changes: Hinge):
Other non-cash movements (note 33(a)) Hith I3 & 2 &) (i 7£33(a)) 20,221 - 20,221
7,610 3,470 11,080
As at 31 March 2018 R=F-N\E=A=+-H 28,265 30,007 58,272
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Z-N\EF=ZA=1t-BILFE

34. Contingent Liabilities

@)

140 K. H. Group Holdings Limited | &

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
provided guarantees to an insurance company as follows:

34.

@

B’\\?&E Hﬁﬂi $%.Eﬁ EXS

2018 2017
—E2—N\F —+t4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
Guarantees on performance bonds for B EALNELIRE S
construction contracts REER 33,388 13,060
In May 2015, a subcontractor claimed against the Group by RZZE—RFHA —ZHEH

for certain construction works (the “Dispute”). The total
amount of claim by the subcontractor is approximately
HK$20,329,000. The Group and the subcontractor
agreed to resolve their Dispute by arbitration or by other
means of dispute resolution.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the arbitration is still in the process and there is
no conclusive decision to resolve the Dispute. The
management, after taking external legal advice, considers
that it is pre-mature to assess the outcome for the said
claim.

Pursuant to the deed of indemnity executed by the then
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company,
New Grace Gain and its ultimate beneficial owners, Mr.
Yeung Sau Ming Boris, Mr. Lau Tai Wah Gilbert and Mr.
Yue Suen Leung, in favour of our Company, each of them
has irrevocably and unconditionally, jointly and severally,
agreed to indemnify the Group against, among others,
all loss and damages arising from the Dispute.

Accordingly, no provision has been made for the claim.

4T = EZER AR A

HETEEIR(AHDMERE
ERRLRE - 2D BERANRER
¥E 49 /20,329,000 7T © A& [H
S ETo \Lﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬁ
ﬁﬂiuzﬁ?ﬂrrdiﬁﬁﬁ#/?%,\#

BEARGEMBREIAE - HE
DHIE#ET - BT EBEAAUHHR
RETE - EEREBEZREINGEARE
BRERR AL REH
) B % i T RO ©

BIEARBERIZRBRRENEE
f%ENew Grace Gaink EHRKE
HHAANGFRHELE - BIFREL
ERRBEREEURRR AFH
MELHBERBERLZE  BE
& BB A K& i 7]
FERNRE - st (EFaiE) Al
mmEAN—ERIRIBERE
MASEELREE -

Fitt - I EHLZREFT RS -
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35. Capital Commitments 35. BEARHEHE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting REBERBERROERAEDAT
period are as follows:

2018 2017
—ZE2—N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T F 74 7T
Contracted but not provided for: BEETA B RET IR B -
Property, plant and equipment Y B RERE - 4,045
36. Lease Commitments 36. HHEHIE
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum RImEMR - TAIHELLEHEE N E
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are NARRFEEENTRBRELOT
payable as follows:
2018 2017
—E—)N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
T T 7 T
Within one year —FRA 2,597 2,337
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRHF
(BREEEMT) 316 308
2,913 2,645
Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by KEHENREERAEBRPAE
the Group for its offices, staff quarters and warehouses. Leases BETEakRERNHNEAS  HOLK
are negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals e T AIBME  HeanNHHA
are fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent BEAXT T BHFEAES -
rentals.
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37. Related Party Transactions 37. BT RP
(@ In addition to those related party transactions and @  BRERE BT H R B4 5 4% BR A9

balances disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transaction with its related party during the year:

RZEBBR TR REHIN KK
BRFENGREEETETUAT
EXXRS:

2018 2017
—E—N\F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T F# T
Rental expenses charged by a related — 5% B8 B A 5] W EX #Y
company HeMZ 1,368 1,302

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming Boris, a director of the Company,
has beneficial interest in this related company.

ARRREFIHFE TR KB
REBEAEmEL °

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the b) AEBFEZEBEABSFHHM:
Group:
2018 2017
—E-—N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ti#ET T T
Short term employee benefits A EE =T 8,237 8,519
Pension scheme contributions RORET B K 97 111
Total compensation paid to key MEEEB AN
management personnel i 48 58 8,334 8,630

Further details of employee benefits expense and
directors’ emoluments are included in note 13 and note
14 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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38.

Events After the Reporting Period

Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and
at the request made by Blessing Well, on 25 May 2018, New
Grace Gain provided an interest-free loan of HK$100,000,000
to the Company for a term of 30 months (the “Security Loan”)
for the purpose of repaying some or all of the outstanding
indebtedness arising from the bank loans, finance leases,
performance bonds, factoring and potential litigation liabilities
with the intent that the corporate guarantees given by the
Company for securing the payment obligation of the Group
in respect of some of such outstanding indebtedness will be
released and discharged if necessary and the Company can
maintain sufficient cash flow when such indebtedness falls due
and needs to be repaid. New Grace Gain shall not be entitled
to demand early repayment and the Company has no right
to make early repayment of the Security Loan. As such, the
Security Loan will be treated as long term liabilities during the
year ending 31 March 2019.

The Security Loan arrangement was to ensure that the
Company would have sufficient cash for its continuous
business operation even if some of the banks and financial
institutions might withdraw their facilities granted to the
Company due to a change of control and any contingent
liabilities which is unforeseen by the Company. The
arrangement also enabled the Company to restructure its debt
financing by replacing its existing loans with a loan at lower
cost and with less securities given.

38.

WwEH1EEIA
BREEEHEIGALERERDN
X - RZFE-NEFRA=-+HAB "
New Grace GainftEZR1TTE K * @
EHE BAOGES  RERKEBEFD
BEFEENSIXNEHRKEEER
[ A2 al 12 #£100,000,00078 T 2 % B
B BHISOMA ([EREFK]) - LA
AR REBEAEB RO REEE
BN REEMEL 2 2ARIERER
FTERERRRRR  UREBHBE
BEBEEEEERAQAR LR
RIE M ° New Grace Gain 18 &3k
REEREAAAEEREREEEER
EX - EHit  #E_Z-AE=A=1
—BLEFE EREFRSES AR
BE-

BEREXZHEERR  BEETR
ThEMEBAERERTARAZ
B A (AR E I E N R ARBIREETR
REEMKRARRBR)  ARAHFABT
RESHBERERT - ZLBETEEE
ARREBKEREERERSBWE
RARRERDBERNEREREHE
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AREBETAMBREENEARAER
BEHERSIMT

BHE=ZA=1T—"BILFEZXRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results for the year ended 31 March

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE2-N\F —T—+F —T—RE —_T-—HF —_T-NE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET T TH T F& T TFB T
Revenue U 28 225,579 125,589 494,135 357,313 235,036
Cost of sales 4 &= B K (222,759)  (121,014)  (416,341)  (287,401)  (188,029)
Gross profit el 2,820 4,575 77,794 69,912 47,013
Other income H Ao U A 137 171 2,046 749 615
Administrative expenses 1T H B X (30,624) (38,203) (28,139) (13,600) (10,459)
Other operating expenses  H fth 48 & f 2 - — — — (125)
(Loss)/Profit from operations #% & Ff 15
(E518), & 7 (27,667) (33,457) 51,701 57,061 37,044
Finance costs Bl & Bk A (1,430) (936) (995) (778) (526)
(Loss)/Profit before tax B 75 Al
(B18) /% 7 (29,097) (34,393) 50,706 56,283 36,518
Income tax credit/(expense) FriE iK%~
(B %) 3,907 544 (10,403) (9,702) (6,329)
(Loss)/Profit and total ZIN/NETEZZ =N
comprehensive income FEAE A (&
for the year attributable to ~ #8), % & &
owners of the Company 2K e B R (25,190) (33,849) 40,303 46,581 30,189
1 ili+1 = — — z =
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=ZA=tT—HZEENIAE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“B-NF Tt —T-—RE —T—HE —TNE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TiE&x T T T FET T T
Total assets BERE 237,529 244,536 336,041 264,095 164,297
Total liabilities BfE®E (112,515) (94,332) (151,988)  (183,548) (130,331)
Net assets BEEFE 125,014 150,204 184,053 80,547 33,966
Note: Pt & -

The summary of the results of the Group for the two years ended 31 March 2014 and
2015 and of the assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2014 and 2015 have been extracted
from the prospectus of the Company dated 8 March 2016 and certain comparative
figures were reclassified to conform to the presentation following the identification of

the business segment of Leasing during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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